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CORPORATE PROFILE
157

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited (“SCE
CM” or the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries, (collectively,
the “Group”) have been principally engaged in the provision of
property management services since 2003 and its shares were listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”) in July 2021 (Stock Code: 606). The Company is a
subsidiary of China SCE Group Holdings Limited (“China SCE
Holdings”, together with its subsidiaries but excluding the Group, the
“China SCE Group”) (Stock Code: 1966). The Group's principal
activities comprise two major segments, namely commercial property
management and operational services and residential property
management services. The Company is headquartered in Shanghai for
its business operations and its services cover the West Taiwan Strait
Economic Zone, the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone, the Bohai
Rim Economic Zone, the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area and the Central Western Region.

The Group had a large contracted property management portfolio
encompassing 62 cities across 19 provinces, municipalities and
autonomous regions in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") as
at 31 December 2022, including Anhui, Beijing, Chongging, Fujian,
Guangdong, Hebei, Henan, Hunan, Jiangsu, Jiangxi, Liaoning,
Shandong, Shanxi, Shaanxi, Shanghai, Sichuan, Tianjin, Yunnan and
Zhejiang. The Group’s commercial property management services
segment and residential property management services segment were
awarded the “2022 China Top 100 Commercial Real Estate
Developers” and “2022 Top 100 Property Management Companies in
China”, respectively, by China Index Academy.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 263 and 166 contracted
projects and projects under management (including both commercial
and residential), respectively, with a total contracted gross floor area
("GFA") of approximately 48.1 million square meters (“sq.m.”) and a
total GFA under management of approximately 25.7 million sq.m. In
the future, SCE CM will continue to move forward and expand
nationwide, further highlighting its chain strength and branding
effect, and strive to become a leading property management services
provider in the PRC.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Lun (Chairman)
Dr. Ding Zuyu
Mr. Wang Yongping

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

LEGAL ADVISOR AS TO HONG KONG LAWS
Chiu & Partners

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

Octal Capital Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AND
HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

5/F, SCE Tower

No. 2, Lane 1688, Shenchang Road
Honggiao Business District, Shanghai
China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 2801, Hysan Place
500 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong
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CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Ping An Bank Co., Ltd.
China Construction Bank Corporation

Bank of China Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Email: ir_cm@sce-icm.com

STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 606

COMPANY WEBSITE

WWW.Sce-icm.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MR

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS #Em&XxME

4

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=T—-HLEE

Increase/
2022 2021 (decrease)
—E-F T —F AR )
RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)
AR%T R AREFT
Revenue WS 1,182,371 1,230,050 (3.9)
Gross profit EF 429,958 580,869 (26.0)
Gross profit margin FEF) = 36.4% 47.2% (10.8 percentage
points)
(10.8 B 2h)
Profit for the year EaNpravll 212,612 286,129 (25.7)
Profit attributable to owners of SARIER ARG T
the parent 208,069 280,609 (25.9)
Earnings per share BRAR
— Basic and diluted — AR RMB10.0 cents RMB15.7 cents
AR¥10.08 AR¥1575 (36.3)
SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL IR RTEE
POSITION
31 December 31 December Increase/
2022 2021 (decrease)
—E-= T
+=A=+—-H +=—A=+—H #An/CR )
RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)
AR%T R AREFT
Total assets BEMR 3,184,944 3,058,734 4.1
Cash and bank balances & RIRITE AR 2,227,290 2,899,610 (23.2)
Total liabilities BEREE (596,984) (616,234) (3.1
Total equity W % 4R RE 2,587,960 2,442,500 6.0
06 SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEWRE

' Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

HBMURE
RARARREAEBEE T _—_F+-H
=t—HIEFENES -

Wong Lun, Chairman
=R, T/F

YEAR IN REVIEW 2022 —EF - F DR

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group achieved revenue HZE-Z-—F+-A=+—RHIFEF K&
of approximately RMB1,182.4 million, representing a year-on-year BEIRWFZHARE 11824187 RLL &
decrease of approximately 3.9%; gross profit margin was 36.4%; and ~ #73.9% : EFE#36.4% : B ATHEE AJE
profit attributable to owners of the parent amounted to (5% F 4 A AR 208118 R TEFL
approximately RMB208.1 million, representing a year-on-year 25.9% o GFEREF 45 ARE 1005 o
decrease of approximately 25.9%. Basic earnings per share amounted

to approximately RMB10.0 cents.

Annual Report 2022 SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited 07
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) does not
recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2022. Payment of a final dividend of HK5 cents per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2021 was approved
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 24 June 2022,
and paid to shareholders on 17 August 2022.

In respect of commercial property management and operational
services, the Group’s Gaomi SCE Funworld located in Shandong
Province opened for business in December 2022. The opening took
place during the critical period when the prevention and control
measures for the COVID-19 pandemic were transitioning to their
relaxation stage. A variety of challenges were overcome by the Group
to accomplish the opening of the shopping mall, with an occupancy
rate of over 92% during the opening period. On the opening day, the
number of visitors exceeded 150,000, standing out among the
commercial projects which opened during the same period in
Shandong Province, as a testament to the efforts of the team, and
confirmed the market’s recognition of the SCE CM brand. As at 31
December 2022, the total number of commercial properties under the
management of the Group was 17, which included 10 SCE Funworlds
and 7 office buildings. In addition, although the outbreak of
COVID-19 pandemic across the PRC during the year affected the
overall construction progress of projects of the China SCE Group, the
China SCE Group, as a resilient corporation, still made vigorous efforts
to turn the tide and concentrated resources to ensure the speedy
completion and commencement of operations of SCE Funworlds
which were of strategic significance. For example, Beijing West
Chang’an SCE Funworld, the first outlet-featured shopping mall of
the China SCE Group, is expected to commence operation in the first
quarter of 2023, while the construction of three other SCE Funworlds
is proceeding with increasing rapidity, and expected to be completed
and put into operation successively in 2023.

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited

TREEESRBERARAT

EFEeERTEREE-S-__F+=A
T t—HLEFENTFARERE -#HE=ZF
T AT ALEFENRAREER
EERSBUER - —FA-+MWEA
FOARRREBAFTAE EREEB  YER
TR CHENATERRBLAERE

EEEMEEBERESRBAE - AEBEGR
RGN SZEPBEE RN T —F+ A
FIZE o B2 AR IE R TE 3T R (B B A AR B A9
AR AEETREERNEEXEYES
W AERNEHEEB2%  HEERE
MMERIE 158 AR - 18 LR A R [ HI R 2
WEEBER —XES  HBEBENE K
R NERAMSHEHPERERENRR - &E
TR ZF+ZA=1T—H AEEEENHY
EMFEEHR/TE AP EFE10RP R A
WRT7EETE - LI GEHEEERER
EHREEMEE  PERREEREENERAT
BREEET  AFRRIHENFPEREED NG
R SR ERBRARKER P FIR
BERPENEE - b BEEEES ﬁﬁ
FERtRART R BT REEERN =

TZFE-FERKEE RINEER= F_EP%R
HRMH TREEMSET BHEAR-F
TEFREEEKEE

Annual Report 2022
TR CFFR



In 2022, SCE CM achieved significant results in digital empowerment.
Continuous commercial marketing and membership digitalisation
promoted the efficiency of marketing and management. From sale
sides including traffic acquisition, member registration, marketing
interaction, transaction conversion, revisit and repurchase, to
management sides including tenants sourcing, contract signing,
reconciliation, settlement, funding and financial vouchers automation,
the full process of digitalised business has been completely realised. A
number of digital innovations have been launched consecutively, such
as the “"24H Non-closing” smart shop for customers’ experience on
boundaryless services, the value upgrade of members’ privilege “Pay
with Points”, and all-channel group buying card business. Through
the precise matching of all sales channels, it achieved the sustainable
reach of target customers. The frequent interaction of continuous
community marketing led to the increase of the membership scale by
72% year-on-year during the year. The “private domain members”
who could be reached at all times were identified, accounting for
more than 10% of the total members. The website visits of the
membership application exceeded 7 million. The marketing search
exposure of the digital marketing platform exceeded 50 million. The
cross-marketing of electronic coupons led to more than 350,000
transactions. The operation generated over RMB100 million sales
including both online and offline business during the year, which has
injected the innovative vitality of digital empowerment into the
business operation during the time of pandemic.

In terms of residential property management services, the Group is
committed to uncovering service potential and developing diversified
value-added services. The Group has successively launched and
gradually improved service models such as “Life Butler Service”,
“Hotel Service” and “One-Stop Service” in order to provide residents
and developers with a more satisfactory service experience. At the
same time, car park sales services and exquisite residence services
were developed vigorously to further extend the service scope,
creating value for residents and developers, and further enhanced the
management scale by virtue of our own capital advantages, brand
strength and service management capabilities. As at 31 December
2022, the GFA under management and the number of residential
property projects under management increased 15.2% and 16.4% to
24.0 million sg.m. and 149 projects, respectively.

Annual Report 2022
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERE

During the year, due to the relative volatility of real estate and its
related markets, the Board, based on the principle of prudent financial
management, has yet to take risks in any merger and acquisition since
its listing. To ensure the maximization of shareholders’ interests, the
Group used its sufficient funds to carry out low-risk investment
activities, such as depositing funds in reputable commercial banks,
and fully utilised its funds to earn considerable returns. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Group's bank interest income was
RMB32.9 million.

In 2022, under the recurring COVID-19 pandemic, our country had
endured the double pressure from prevention and control measures
and economic development. Faced with the pandemic prevention and
control measures in different cities, the Group actively implemented
the national pandemic control policy of “dynamic zero” and
coordinated with local governments in compliance with their
pandemic control requirements, with the prevention of the pandemic
as the primary objective of daily property management and the
hygiene and cleanliness of the management area as the special focus.
Prompt responses were made during the lockdown in various areas to
ensure timely distribution of relief and sufficient supply of equipment
for pandemic control for the purpose of fighting the pandemic while
maintaining the normal and safe operation of shopping malls and
minimising the impact on the daily life of the residents.

OUTLOOK

The Group believes that, in the face of constant changes in the
market, the optimised and upgraded strategies of “regional focus”,
“synergy and coexistence” and “digital empowerment” are the keys
for the Group to establish a differentiated competitive advantage in
the industry. Shopping malls in operation need to maintain their
stable operation and continuous improvement on their operating
capabilities while prioritising marketing and emphasising operation to
gradually establish, through reasonable tenants sourcing and active
adjustment, a “co-operation model” with merchants which possesses
operating uniqueness and core competitiveness. By combining
membership and digital empowerment, resources are concentrated to
realise synergy and development in the region. Under the guidance of
the new strategy of project expansion, focus will be given further on
regional development to form the synergy of “multiple shops in one

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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city” and “multiple shops in multiple cities” in the core region and to
create the operating advantages gradually in the deeply cultivated
regions as well as to stabilise the room for growth. Meanwhile, value
symbiosis will be realised with operation as our orientation and
consumers as our focus: creation of business value for merchants,
provision of service value for consumers, empowerment of growth
value for employees, reward of asset management value for
shareholders, and strict adherence to the business philosophy of
“win-win situation for all”. The refined operation under the new
business philosophy will also become the professional advantage of
the Group’s core competitiveness and the source of certainty for
stable growth.

In the coming year, since our country has made timely optimisation
on its pandemic prevention and control policy, as a supporter of the
national policy, the Group has actively responded to the national
pandemic control relaxation policy in a timely manner and continued
to provide high-quality property services for all projects and improve
the hygiene level in all project management areas to reduce the risk
of COVID-19 outbreak, thereby promoting the recovery of shopping
mall visits and sales. It is expected that the performance will rebound
steadily in 2023.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere

gratitude to all the staff, shareholders, customers and partners of the
Group.

Wong Lun
Chairman

Hong Kong, China
30 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DM

OVERVIEW

The Group is a service provider focusing on property management
services with operations in the West Taiwan Strait Economic Zone, the
Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone, the Bohai Rim Economic Zone,
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and the Central
Western Region. As at 31 December 2022, there were 40 contracted
commercial properties (including shopping malls and offices) with a
total contracted GFA of approximately 5.0 million sq.m. and 17
commercial properties under management with a total GFA under
management of approximately 1.7 million sg.m..

The Group also provides property management services to residential
properties. As at 31 December 2022, there were 223 contracted
residential projects with a total contracted GFA of approximately 43.2
million sq.m. and 149 residential projects under management with a
total GFA under management of approximately 24.0 million sq.m..

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MARKET REVIEW

During the year, the real estate market was sluggish and financing
channels were tightened. As a result of capital chain rupture, some real
estate developers were affected and their projects were experiencing
repeated delays in the delivery period, which ultimately hindered
economic development. The impact had reached further and deeper
under the shadow of the COVID-19 pandemic. In view of this, the
People’s Bank of China and the China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission issued the Notice on Providing Financial
Support for the Stable and Healthy Development of the Real Estate
Market on 11 November 2022, which included 16 items for the multi-
dimensional improvement on the domestic financing environment in
China and the support to the steady and healthy development of the
real estate market in an orderly manner. After the announcement of
the above-mentioned notice, some banks in China responded to the
general direction of the new policy of the Chinese government and
provided additional credit lines to well-established real estate companies
that had yet to default on their debts in order to relieve their liquidity
tension.

The introduction of the policies above shows that the Chinese
government’s attitude towards the real estate market has changed
from “restrictive” to “supportive”. Such change will become a
catalyst for the development of the real estate market, enabling real
estate companies to take off again. The property management
industry related to real estate will also be benefited. It is expected that
the speed of development of real estate projects will resume in the
next few years, after which the room for scale growth will show up
for all property management companies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEBER W R DT

BUSINESS REVIEW %0

During the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”), the Group HZE-_E-—&+-_A=+—HItFEE(£E
conducted business activities in the following major business Ry]) » ZNEMMN T EBEEH L - BI()
segments, namely (i) commercial property management and ¥ XEENELZRE: L)EEMESER
operational services; and (i) residential property management services.  FEETTESTE) o

16 SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFNWR DN

During the Year, the Group’s revenue by business segment is as X « NEBIZEBK DI DR ANT
follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLEE

2022 2021

—E-= T —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETFT

Commercial property management PEEMEEE MEE IR

and operational services 395,812 563,073

Residential property management services TEMEEERRSE 786,559 666,977

Total HEt 1,182,371 1,230,050
Annual Report 2022 SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

Commercial property management and operational services

During the Year, the Group’s commercial property management and
operational services segment recorded total revenue of approximately
RMB395.8 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 29.7%; GFA under management of approximately 1.7
million sg.m., representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
9.2%; the number of projects under management of 17 projects,
representing a year-on-year increase of one project; and contracted
GFA of approximately 5.0 million sg.m., representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 11.1%.

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Year, the contracted GFA, GFA under management and

FR - ARBEZBEE S

EEEWLD

i

DRI XM EE IR E

revenue under the Group’s commercial property management and ~ ZRIEDIHELBEEE EEREMBER
operational services segment by geographical area are as follows: WABRARLNT -
Year ended 31 December
BET-A=t-HLEE
2022 2021
—E_CE —E--fF
GFA GFA
Contracted under Contracted under
GFA Management Revenue GFA Management Revenue
#H rE 0 EE
BEER BEHE 0N BEER BEER WA
sq.m. sq.m. RMB sg.m. sg.m. RMB
FhHK THK AR¥T FAK FAK ARET
(in thousands) (in thousands)
(A F3t) (BAFE)
Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone &= A& EME 2,098 698 168,191 2,720 698 366,287
West Taiwan Strait Economic Zone /IR FI R4 EH 891 583 133,245 891 583 140,488
Bohai Rim Economic Zone BHECER 739 197 54,357 739 54 39,385
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao EEBRER
Greater Bay Area 611 1M 19,013 611 m 8,096
Central Western Region R 623 112 21,006 623 112 8,817
Total by 4,962 1,701 395,812 5,584 1,558 563,073

Annual Report 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

Certain information of the Group’s commercial properties under K==

CCER_E-_—H+-_A=+—8"
EEEmEDEETEMEIINOT

management as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 is set out below: RE
Occupancy Rate GFA under Management
ik EEREER
As at 31 December
W+=B=+-H
Project Opening Date Property Type Location Geographic Region 2022 2021 2022 2021
e GEEE NEER wE HE ZBCZE -Z--F ZBIZE -T--F
% % sq.m. sq.m.
THK ik
Xiamen SCE Building January 2007 Office building Xiamen West Taiwan Strait 9.5 95.2 50,309 50,309
Economic Zone
EFREAEETE S BTR B BRERCER
Beijing CBD SCE Funworld September 2009 Shopping street Beijing Bohai Rim Economic Zone 88.5 785 54,484 54,484
JER CBDAELE R “ETNENA B0 iR RHEEEE
Quanzhou SCE Funworld May 2014 Shopping mall Quanzhou West Taiwan Strait 89.1 928 180,929 180,929
Economic Zone
TR Bt Rl “E-QmEERA BB M BRERCER
Gala Fun December 2014 Shopping street Quanzhou West Taiwan Strait 75.0 n7 1,729 11,729
Economic Zone
FEY; “E-MEtZR BOE M BREFLEE
Shanghai SCE Plaza June 2017 Office building Shanghai Yangtze River Delta 100.0 100.0 218471 218,471
Phase One Economic Zone
ETEES ZEERA BT 8 R=AEER
Shanghai SCE Plaza July 2018 Office building Shanghai Yangtze River Delta 75.6 56.0 126,525 126,525
Phase Two Economic Zone
rEREES—H ZE-\§tA BFiE g R-AIEER
Quanzhou SCE Plaza August 2018 Office building Quanzhou West Taiwan Strait 87.0 82.0 45,972 45,972
Office Building Economic Zone
FMNPRESETE - \EN\A BT M BREFLEE
Shishi Fortune Center September 2018 Office building Quanzhou West Taiwan Strait 69.9 471 33,380 33,380
Economic Zone
BRIESR D “Z-\¥NA BT M BREEEEE
Nan'an SCE Funworld December 2018 Shopping mall Quanzhou West Taiwan Strait 97.1 100.0 72,618 72,618
Economic Zone
AR et SR ZT-\ETZA BYES M BRERCER
Tianyue October 2020 Office building Shanghai Yangtze River Delta 75.2 62.8 52,499 52,499
Economic Zone
PN ZETETA BYiE I R-AEHE

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFWRDN

Occupancy Rate GFA under Management
ik HERZER
As at 31 December
M+=B=t-H
Project Opening Date Property Type Location Geographic Region 2022 2021 2022 2021
%R SR nERR g e SRoCE CFC-F DRI CRF
% % sq.m. sq.m.
THK  Fhk
Shuitou SCE Funworld December 2020 Shopping mall Quanzhou West Taiwan Strait 923 9.9 105,290 105,290
Economic Zone
KRR R ZEIRESCR BYES M BREREEE
Xianyou SCE Funworld December 2020 Shopping mall Putian West Taiwan Strait 91.1 97.0 82,678 82,678
Economic Zone
e Bt 55 “ECEEFCR BEs #H BRERLEER
Taizhou SCE Funworld December 2021 Shopping mall Taizhou Yangtze River Delta 84.2 9.0 199,625 199,625
Economic Zone
TSR ZEC-%tZRA BYES M R=AEEE
Heyuan SCE Funworld December 2021 Shopping mall Heyuan Guangdong-Hong Kong- 80.8 9.0 111,084 111,084
Macao Greater Bay Area
TR SRt SR e Sahc e BOE5 R BARAER
Pingdingshan SCE Funworld December 2021 Shopping mall Pingdingshan  Central Western Region 97.3 100.0 111,142 111,142
TR et R S TEs FIAW PEHE
Zhangjiagang SCE Funworld December 2021 Shopping mall Suzhou Yangtze River Delta 99.5 100.0 100,825 100,825
Economic Zone
RA AT R “EC-ETCR BUES &M R=AEER
Gaomi SCE Funworld December 2022 Shopping mall Weifang Bohai Rim Economic Zone 92.6 N/A 143,634 N/A
BETREE R ZZTZZF4ZR BEs i RABEHE Qi il Gyl
Total 88.8 854 1,701,194 1,557,560
@t

Annual Report 2022
T FFR

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited

TEREEESREERARAR

21



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWRD

The table below sets out certain information of the shopping malls

i

and an office building for which the Group has contracted to provide

basic commercial property management but which have not yet been
delivered to the Group for management as at 31 December 2022:

TREIIMN T -_—_F+-A=1+—HBAKH
EROREHEAHEYEEREFHARARNTA
SEEENBYRSEASFENETER -

Expected Contracted
Project Opening Date Property Type Location Geographic Region GFA
-3
HE b ES=E MERR vE & BEER
sg.m.
FIK
Tangshan SCE Funworld March 2023 Shopping mall Tangshan Bohai Rim Economic Zone 78,048
T L A Bt SR —E-=%=H BYES E L REEER
Beijing West Chang'an March 2023 Shopping mall Beijing Bohai Rim Economic Zone 103,453
SCE Funworld
LR R L B S ey BYES R REEKEE
Shantou SCE Funworld September 2023 Shopping mall Shantou Guangdong-Hong Kong- 154,710
Macao Greater Bay Area
ISR Bt SR —E-=%NA BYES MITEE] BERNER
Fuzhou SCE Funworld December 2023 Shopping mall Fuzhou West Taiwan Strait 136,213
Economic Zone
A& BT TR —=F+=A BYES = BT ER
Huagiao SCE Funworld December 2023 Shopping mall Suzhou Yangtze River Delta 148,826
Economic Zone
TERG A Bt SR “=H+ZR BYES M R=EAKEE
Shaoguan SCE Funworld September 2024 Shopping mall Shaoguan Guangdong-Hong Kong- 109,802
Macao Greater Bay Area
Gl ik audinig —Z-WFAA BYES Eale BERNER
Nanchang SCE Funworld December 2024 Shopping mall Nanchang West Taiwan Strait 112,232
Economic Zone
R B B R —ECoME+ZRA BYES (3= T = A
Zhumadian SCE Funworld  June 2025 Shopping mall Zhumadian Central Western Region 153,094
BE 55 5 T SRt SR ZTARFRA BYES BEE bR
Hefei SCE Funworld June 2025 Shopping mall Hefei Yangtze River Delta 222,100
Economic Zone
B A B R ZZZRFERA BYES & R=AKERE
Haian SCE Funworld September 2025 Shopping mall Nantong Yangtze River Delta 100,581
Economic Zone
BRI —Z-RFAA BYES [Eapii R=AKEE
Rizhao SCE Funworld September 2025 Shopping mall Rizhao Bohai Rim Economic Zone 112,719
B AR e Bt SR “TRFNA BYES BR REERER

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWNRD

i

Expected Contracted
Project Opening Date Property Type Location Geographic Region GFA
Y
HE iRl ESEE MERR vE & BEER
sg.m.
FIK
Yushan SCE Funworld December 2025 Shopping mall Shangrao West Taiwan Strait 60,000
Economic Zone
EILE 38871 “ERFTZA BYES s TR = A R
Jieyang SCE Funworld December 2025 Shopping mall Jieyang Guangdong-Hong Kong- 116,196
Macao Greater Bay Area
1B Bt S “TCRFTZA BYES 18F% BERNER
Rudong SCE Funworld December 2025 Shopping mall Nantong Yangtze River Delta 123,233
Economic Zone
ANER R Bt R “ZRFTZA BYRES Eapi R=EAKEE
Dinghu Woven City December 2025 Office building Hangzhou Yangtze River Delta 459,983
Economic Zone
SRR, “TCRFTZA BFE A R=AKEE
Tongchuan SCE Funworld ~ December 2026 Shopping mall Tongchuan Central Western Region 122,112
1) 1|7 Bt SRRk “ERFTZA BURS )| el 51
Chizhou SCE Funworld December 2026 Shopping mall Chizhou Yangtze River Delta 116,326
Economic Zone
S o Bt SRR “ToRFTZA BYRS S R=AKEE
Binzhou SCE Funworld December 2026 Shopping mall Binzhou Bohai Rim Economic Zone 127,152
VB o Bt SRR “TORETZA BYES =l REERER
Meizhou SCE Funworld December 2026 Shopping mall Meizhou Guangdong-Hong Kong- 119,083
Macao Greater Bay Area
180 e Bt SRR “EORFTZA BYRS 181 BERNER
Tongnan SCE Funworld December 2026 Shopping mall Chongging Central Western Region 130,392
E R PR S “ToRFTZRA BYRS BF h bR
Xiangtan SCE Funworld December 2026 Shopping mall Xiangtan Central Western Region 106,830
MRV FR At SR “—ZoRETZA BYES R aalih: 51
Nantong Haimen SCE December 2026 Shopping mall Nantong Yangtze River Delta 228,837
Funworld Economic Zone
HRE P Bt SR —ToRETZA BYES E2fii R=AKEE
Penglai SCE Funworld December 2026 Shopping mall Penglai Bohai Rim Economic Zone 118,999
AP R RN “EoRETZA EYES EX RYBEER
Total 3,260,921
5
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BN DA

The Group ensures the quality of its property management services
through operational refinement. Before the opening of SCE Funworld,
market research was conducted to understand the distribution of
population, age groups, per capita income and consumption levels in
the area, so as to match the appropriate product lines and use this as
a basis to prepare for the positioning of SCE Funworld. The Group has
continued to improve its service standards of SCE Funworld, focusing
on communication with tenants and customers, and on the finest
details of shopping malls, such as ensuring smooth access and
improving the balance of night lighting and interior lighting at night,
so as to enhance customer satisfaction and achieve a win-win
situation with the tenants.

Although the Group’s commercial projects scheduled to be opened
had been postponed under the difficult market situation in 2022,
Gaomi SCE Funworld, which was successfully opened at the end of
the Year, achieved brilliant opening results and earned a good
reputation in the local market, which enhanced the prestige of SCE
Funworld and affirmed the broad experience of the Group’s
management team and its ability to continue to ensure high-quality
service standards in the face of severe market changes. In addition,
the market fit of the brand portfolio of Gaomi SCE Funworld in
Shandong Province and the number of visitors during its opening
exceeded the expectations of the local market, which boosted the
confidence of business partners in the brand of SCE Funworld. While
Gaomi SCE Funworld became the Group’s first shopping mall in the
Bohai Rim Economic Zone, a strategic step for the Group’s business
expansion has been established in China’s vast territory.

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at the end of 2022, the total number of members of the Group
exceeded 2.2 million. The Group comprehensively upgraded member’s
privilege, established a private domain traffic matrix, and consolidated
digital intelligence to empower business operations. The total brand
adjustment of SCE Funworld exceeded 20% during the Year.
Particularly, Quanzhou SCE Funworld upgraded its tenant mix to
become the first city display of international cosmetic products.
Brands of international luxury watches, well-known sportswear,
women'’s clothing, and internet celebrity restaurants had opened their
first stores. In 2022, the Group fully and iteratively upgraded the
online application and provided functions such as “Sales and
Distribution by Users”, “Super-valued Group Buying”, “Sign-in Gift"
and “Fun Games”. The mechanism of selling and distributing all
products by all people and the group-buying model drove the growth
of the brand’s performance. At the same time, it increased user
stickiness, expanded online and offline marketing groups, and broke
through the boundaries of time and space. For example, Beijing West
Chang’an SCE Funworld, which will open in 2023, will be developed
into a “24-hour Non-closing Innovative Outlet” to provide customers
with a more convenient and faster shopping experience. This move
not only breaks through the traditional single-point operation model
of a single offline merchant, but also connects all offline merchants
across the country with a marketing channel matrix to help merchants
to market conveniently and allow national products to be sold
nationwide. In November 2022, the “SCE Shopping Card” was
officially launched, which interacted with the brand to open a new
online and offline shopping model and further optimise digital
marketing.

Residential Property Management Services

During the Year, the Group’s residential property management
services segment recorded total revenue of approximately RMB786.6
million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 17.9%;
GFA under management was approximately 24.0 million sq.m.,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 15.2%; the
number of projects under management was 149 projects,
representing an increase of 21 projects; and contracted GFA was
approximately 43.2 million sq.m., representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 6.7%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEBER W R DT

TR AEBRMEESOEEDES RS
DEMERLEEEE FEEZEABERKAR
N

During the Year, the contracted GFA, GFA under management and
revenue under the Group’s residential property management services
segment by geographical area are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=T+-BLEE

2022 2021
—E-CE —E-F
GFA GFA
Contracted under Contracted under
GFA Management Revenue GFA Management Revenue
#H EE #4X EE
BEER BEER KA BERE BREE KA
sg.m. sg.m. RMB sg.m. sg.m. RMB
SN SN AR®T FRA FRA ARBT
(in thousands) (in thousands)
(BAF3) (ATF3)
Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone R=-AEERE 8,998 4,529 176,061 7,584 2,996 143,096
West Taiwan Strait Economic Zone BREEEER 16,167 11,595 325,075 15,976 10,930 296,106
Bohai Rim Economic Zone RS ER 6,281 3,532 135,968 5,460 3,152 121,672
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao BERANER
Greater Bay Area 4,244 1,003 56,143 4,244 783 43317
Central Western Region TR 7,489 3,353 93,312 7,209 2,987 62,786
Total st 43,179 24,012 786,559 40,473 20,848 666,977
OUTLOOK g=2]

After a year of turmoil in the real estate market, all real estate FREMETEIHEN—F SEHEREY

26

developers have suffered greatly. Certain real estate developers are
still relatively resilient and firmly fulfilling their debt obligation. Some
real estate developers who lack cash flow can only “lie flat” and wait
for the moment when the financing environment improves. Now that
the Chinese government has modified its response to the COVID-19
pandemic, indicating that China will reopen its door to the world, and
the economy will gradually recover. The open attitude towards real
estate financing will also inject new impetus for the restart of the real
estate industry. Real estate developers including the China SCE Group
will be able to improve cash flow and speed up the construction
progress of all projects. It is expected that the Group will be able to
regain its inherent pace and expand its management scale at a rapid
rate. On the other hand, the Group will utilise its existing funds
flexibly to identify potential targets among industries and expand the
scale of its property management portfolio in a prudent manner,
thereby magnifying the brand effect of “SCE CM".

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In the face of fierce competition within the industry, all property
management companies actively “Explore New Sources of Income”
and develop different types of value-added services to differentiate
themselves from their competitors in the market. The Group deeply
understands its importance and has developed car park sales services,
exquisite residence services, residential property agency services and
other value-added services that have high gross profit margins in
recent years. In order to meet the needs of future development, the
Group expects to “Reduce Expenditure”, optimise its human resources
structure, deepen the application of digitalisation, in order to save the
high and unnecessary annual labor costs and further enhance the
Group's competitiveness in the market.

In terms of commercial property management, the Group’s pre-
opening management service income decreased significantly during
2022 due to the recent gradual reduction in land acquisition by the
China SCE Group. In view of this, the Group will reduce its reliance on
the single real estate developer of the China SCE Group, actively strive
to provide high-quality pre-opening management services for
shopping malls of other real estate developers, make up for the
decrease in income from the China SCE Group, and export the high-
quality management model of SCE CM. In addition, looking ahead to
2023, the Group will remain firm in its initial intention and rely on
strategic upgrades to focus on its operation-oriented and consumer-
centric business philosophy with a more solid pace, to create a win-
win situation for all, to enhance the consumer experience, to
continuously empower its tenants, and to further enhance the
operation capabilities of SCE CM and its influence in the market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Revenue decreased by 3.9% from approximately RMB1,230.1 million
in 2021 to approximately RMB1,182.4 million in 2022. This was due
to the combined effect of increase in the GFA under management
and the significant decrease in the revenue recorded from the
provision of pre-opening management services of commercial
properties.

A breakdown of the Group’s revenue by service category for the years
indicated is set out below:

B 75 Bl BB
Uy 358

WaEB T —FHOARE 1230118
P39%ET - FMHARE11.824187T
[EEY=E) e =g = £ Ak by S EHEX I ES: 0l ES
A& 12 RIS UA K BIR D BAR & R B FTEL -

D]
o

A E R B IR R85 A B 40
m

Year ended 31 December

BEEt-A=t—-HLEE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage
A Bat WA BA
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ARET T ARETFTT
Commercial property management ~ H¥Y(EER
and operational services BERE
Basic commercial property EAREENEEERE
management services 242,762 20.5 186,801 15.2
Pre-opening management services HERTIERE 45,044 3.8 286,499 233
Other value-added services H A B ERRTS 108,006 9.2 89,773 73
Subtotal et 395,812 33.5 563,073 45.8
Residential property management I EYXEBRK
services
Basic residential property BERFENEERRS
management services 529,074 44.8 414,286 33.7
Value-added services to FEEERERK
non-property owners 195,574 16.5 173,155 14.1
Community value-added services R ERS 61,911 5.2 79,536 6.4
Subtotal INEt 786,559 66.5 666,977 54.2
Total e 1,182,371 100.0 1,230,050 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Basic Commercial Property Management Services

The Group’s basic commercial property management services mainly
include cleaning, security, repair and maintenance, tenant assistance,
marketing and promotion services provided to property developers,
property owners and tenants. The Group’s revenue from basic
commercial property management services increased by approximately
30.0% from approximately RMB186.8 million in 2021 to
approximately RMB242.8 million in 2022, accounting for
approximately 20.5% of its total revenue. This was due to the
increase in GFA under management.

Pre-opening Management Services

The Group's pre-opening management services mainly include market
research and positioning, preliminary consultation and planning,
architectural design consultation, tenant acquisition and opening
preparation services provided to property developers prior to the
opening of commercial properties. The Group’s revenue from pre-
opening management services decreased significantly by
approximately 84.3% from approximately RMB286.5 million in 2021
to approximately RMB45.0 million in 2022, accounting for
approximately 3.8% of its total revenue. This was due to the
temporary suspension of land acquisition by the China SCE Group
starting from 2022. The number of shopping malls for which the
Group provided pre-opening management services decreased
significantly from 30 in 2021 to seven in 2022.

Other Value-added Services

The Group’s other value-added services mainly include tenant
management, rental collection, parking lot management, advertising
space and other common area management services provided after
the opening of commercial properties. The Group's revenue from
other value-added services increased by approximately 20.3% from
approximately RMB89.8 million in 2021 to approximately RMB108.0
million in 2022, accounting for approximately 9.2% of its total
revenue. This was due to the combined effect of increase in GFA
under management and the worse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
on the operations in 2022 as compared with 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BN DA

Basic Residential Property Management Services

The Group's basic residential property management services mainly
include cleaning, security, landscaping and repair and maintenance
services provided to property owners, property owners’ committees or
property developers. The Group's revenue from basic residential
property management services increased by approximately 27.7%
from approximately RMB414.3 million in 2021 to approximately
RMB529.1 million in 2022, accounting for approximately 44.8% of its
total revenue. This was due to the increase in GFA under
management.

Value-added Services to Non-property Owners

The Group’s value-added services to non-property owner mainly
include the provision of pre-sale management services to property
developers during pre-sale activities, such as cleaning, security and
repair and maintenance services for pre-sale display units and sales
offices, pre-delivery inspection services and car park sales services for
car parks that remained unsold after the pre-sale period. The Group’s
revenue from value-added services to non-property owners increased
by approximately 12.9% from approximately RMB173.2 million in
2021 to approximately RMB195.6 million in 2022, accounting for
approximately 16.5% of its total revenue. This was due to the
increase in revenue from the provision of the car park sales services.

Community Value-added Services

The Group’s community value-added services mainly include
housekeeping and cleaning services, residential property agency
services, exquisite residence services, car park management, clubhouse
operation and common area management value-added services. The
Group's revenue from community value-added services decreased by
approximately 22.2% from approximately RMB79.5 million in 2021 to
approximately RMB61.9 million in 2022, accounting for approximately
5.2% of its total revenue. This was due to the decrease in revenue
from the provision of residential property agency services.
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A breakdown of the Group’s revenue by customer category for the

years indicated is set out below:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEFNWR DN

R NG W RS RIE 5 kA B
mF -

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-HLEE

2022 2021
—E-CF T
Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage
[ON Batk WA BOl
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ARET T ARETFT
Commercial property management  BEEYETEREERE
and operational services
China SCE Group hEEEE 68,651 5.8 262,811 21.4
Joint ventures or associates of REREEENAEDNEY 2,389 0.2 21,003 1.7
China SCE Group" d=yNSU
Independent third party BIYE=F 324,772 27.5 279,259 22.7
Subtotal Net 395,812 335 563,073 458
Residential property management I EYXEERK
services
China SCE Group hEEE 189,110 16.0 156,021 12.7
Joint ventures or associates of mHREENSE T EY 22,952 1.9 34,658 2.8
China SCE Group™ NG
Independent third party BAE=H 574,497 48.6 476,298 38.7
Subtotal NeF 786,559 66.5 666,977 54.2
Total mEr 1,182,371 100.0 1,230,050 100.0
Note: fHsT -

(1) Includes joint ventures or associates of the China SCE Group and other (1)

entities controlled by family of Mr. Wong Lun (“Wong Family”).

Revenue from independent third parties is the largest source of
revenue for the Group. The Group's revenue from independent third

BETEREENAECERBMENT RHERSL
EHE((FEERRE]D R E R -

KIRIBILE =77 AR AR B R AWA
KR - REBRERBLE=ZTHBAR T

parties increased by approximately 19.0% from approximately ——F4 AR 7556 T FHL19.0%FE—

RMB755.6 million in 2021 to approximately RMB899.3 million in
2022, accounting for approximately 76.1% of the Group’s total

revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

Gross Profit

Gross profit decreased by approximately 26.0% from approximately
RMB580.9 million in 2021 to approximately RMB430.0 million in
2022.

The overall gross profit margin decreased from approximately 47.2%
in 2021 to approximately 36.4% in 2022. The decrease in gross profit
margin was mainly due to the significant decrease in the revenue
recorded from the provision of pre-opening management services of
commercial properties which had higher gross profit margins.

A breakdown of the Group’s gross profit and gross profit margin by
business segment for the years indicated are as follows:

SR

EFBR_ZT - —FHHARE 5809 ETLH D
4926 0%E—T - —FMHARKEAL300ETT -

BRENEH-_Z-—F00N472% L EZ
T FMK364% c TREBLEZE2HN
ReENEROEEYENFZEEERBKA
RIER D FTEL ©

REBMPNEWEEREBD BUSOENRE
FIEBRMMT -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—-HLEE

2022 2021

—E-C-F —E-—F
Gross Profit Gross Profit
Gross Profit Margin  Gross Profit Margin
E EFIE EM EME
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %

ARBT T ARETT
Commercial property management EENEEEREERK 154,122 38.9 323,913 57.5
and operational services

Residential property management services EEMEEERS 275,836 35.1 256,956 385
Total @t 429,958 36.4 580,869 472

Gross profit margin of the commercial property management and
operational services segment decreased significantly from
approximately 57.5% in 2021 to approximately 38.9% in 2022. The
decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to the significant
decrease in the revenue recorded from the provision of pre-opening
management services of commercial properties which had higher
gross profit margins.

The gross profit margin of the residential property management
services segment decreased from approximately 38.5% in 2021 to
approximately 35.1% in 2022. The decrease in gross profit margin
was mainly resulted from the decrease in the proportion of revenue
recorded from the provision of value-added services in total revenue
of residential property management services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Income and Gains

The Group's other income and gains mainly comprised bank interest
income, foreign exchange gain, government subsidies and forfeiture
income on deposits received.

Other income and gains increased significantly by approximately
93.1% from approximately RMB24.0 million in 2021 to approximately
RMB46.4 million in 2022. The increase in other income and gains was
mainly due to the significant increase in bank interest income.

Administrative Expenses

The Group's administrative expenses mainly comprised salaries and
wages of administrative staff, entertainment expenses, office
expenses, travel and transportation expenses and depreciation.

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately 10.9% from
approximately RMB218.5 million in 2021 to approximately RMB194.7
million in 2022. The decrease in administrative expenses was mainly
attributable to the absence of one-off share issue expenses incurred
during the Year.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased significantly by approximately 30.4%
from approximately RMB97.5 million in 2021 to approximately
RMB67.8 million in 2022. Income tax expense as a percentage of
profit before taxation decreased from 25.4% in 2021 to 24.2% in
2022, mainly resulted from the absence of one-off share issue
expenses, which are non-deductible expenses for the purpose of PRC
corporate income tax computation, incurred during the Year.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent

Profit attributable to owners of the parent decreased by approximately
25.9% from approximately RMB280.6 million in 2021 to
approximately RMB208.1 million in 2022. Basic earnings per share
amounted to approximately RMB10.0 cents in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

Trade Receivables

The Group's trade receivables were mainly derived from amounts to
be received for the provision of commercial property management
and operational services and residential property management
services. Trade receivables increased significantly by approximately
153.3% from approximately RMB71.8 million as at 31 December
2021 to approximately RMB181.8 million as at 31 December 2022,
mainly due to the business expansion and the decrease in collection
rate as a result of COVID-19 pandemic.

Amount Due From a Related Party

The Group’s amount due from a related party was a loan advanced to
the China SCE Group during the Year at an interest rate of 7.0% per
annum. The loan will be repaid on or before 31 December 2024.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

The Group's prepayments, deposits and other receivables mainly
include prepaid utility fees, share issue expenses and utility charge
prepaid on behalf of tenants and residents. Prepayments, deposits
and other receivables increased significantly by approximately 125.4%
from approximately RMB29.2 million as at 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB65.9 million as at 31 December 2022, mainly due
to the business expansion and the accrued bank interest as a result of
fixed deposits not yet matured at year end.

Trade Payables

The Group’s trade payables mainly refer to the amounts payable for
goods or services (such as materials, utilities, cleaning and services)
purchased from suppliers and subcontractors in the ordinary course of
business. Trade payables decreased slightly by approximately 2.3%
from approximately RMB76.8 million as at 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB75.1 million as at 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Payables and Accruals

The Group's other payables and accruals mainly include (i) deposits
from tenants, residents and subcontractors, (ii) accrued expenses and
utility charge received in advance from tenants or residents, (iii)
others, mainly including value-added tax payable, fees payable to
owners under community value-added service arrangements, and
community repair and maintenance provision funds. Other payables
and accruals increased by approximately 6.8% from approximately
RMB253.7 million as at 31 December 2021 to approximately
RMB271.0 million as at 31 December 2022. This was mainly due to
the business expansion.

Contract Liabilities

The Group’s contract liabilities mainly represent prepayments for
management fee paid by the customers of the Group’s commercial
property management and operational services and residential
property management services. Contract liabilities increased by
approximately 2.8% from approximately RMB192.4 million as at 31
December 2021 to approximately RMB197.8 million as at 31
December 2022, mainly due to the increase in customers’ demand for
the Group's residential property management services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

Cash Position

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and bank balances were
denominated in different currencies as set out below:

nBER  MBRERNER
BEMR

NR-ZBE-_—F+-A=+—0 X&EEHNKES
NMERITEREERTIUA T AR S HE

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

—=—= —T -

+=HA=+—-H +=ZA=t+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT R AREFT

Renminbi AR 2,220,441 2,427,033

Hong Kong dollars BT 4,737 413,424

UsS dollars E7T 2,112 59,153

Total cash and bank balances RNe RIBITERES 2,227,290 2,899,610
The Group placed certain deposits in a bank in the PRC to secure  A&EEHE THFHFRIEARITAERTAR

certain bills issued from a bank in the PRC for the bidding of
commercial land parcels for future development of the Group. As at
31 December 2022, the amount of pledged deposits was
approximately RMB1.0 billion (31 December 2021: Nil).

Borrowings and Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not incur any borrowings (31
December 2021: Nil). As at 31 December 2022, save as disclosed
above, none of the Group’s assets were restricted or pledged (31
December 2021: Nil).

The gearing ratio was calculated by dividing the net amount of
interest-bearing borrowings by total equity. As at 31 December 2022,
the gearing ratio was nil (31 December 2021: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Exchange Rate Fluctuation Exposures

The Group’s businesses are located in the PRC and all of the revenue
and a substantial amount of operating expenses of the Group are
denominated in RMB. As at 31 December 2022, except for certain
bank deposits which were denominated in foreign currencies,
exchange rate changes of RMB against foreign currencies will not
have material adverse effect on the results of operations of the Group.

No foreign currency hedging arrangement was made as at 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021:
monitor its exposure to fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates.

Nil). The Group will closely

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2021: Nil).

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the capital commitments of the Group were
as follows:

EEEFNWR DN

ERBER

$EI%¢Hﬁﬁ¥%*$El%%W*ﬁ%
REDELRAIGAARKEFTE R2F =
FHZA=+—H  BRUINEFHERN S TR
FRoN - AR EMINENEXTZH TG Y
AEENKEREEREATNZE -

RIE-—F+-A=+—08  KEELTEE
EEMMNEEFRLZH (T =Z—F+=A
=+—H:8) AEEBEETYERINE
P R B 2 B

KB AE
R=B==Ft=A=+— B AREBRE

MEASFRE( T _—F+-_A=1t—H:
&) -

AE

RZB-—F+-A=+—0  XEEHER
APEWT

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
—E-CF B
+=HA=+—-H +ZA=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETT
Contracted, but not provided for: EEOBERERH
Acquisition of office equipment g8/ /N 16,975 22,312
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BN DA

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 5,178 employees
(31 December 2021: 4,986 employees). During the Year, the total
cost of employees was approximately RMB573.8 million (for the year
ended 31 December 2021: approximately RMB529.4 million). The
Company recognises the importance of gender diversity and recruits
employees at all levels based on merits. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group had 3,200 male employees (31 December 2021: 2,987 male
employees) and 1,978 female employees (31 December 2021: 1,999
female employees). The Group shall further strengthen the gender
diversity in the workforce in the future where appropriate. The Group
provides employees with competitive remuneration and benefits. The
Group reviews the employee remuneration plan at least annually to
ensure that it maintains market competitiveness and allows the
employees to receive fair and equal rewards. The remuneration and
promotion decision are also based on considering the employees’
assessment results, experience, skills and personal characteristics. The
Group has also launched its management trainee programme for
positions in selected functional areas in order to build pipeline for
succession.

The employees of the Group employed in Hong Kong and the PRC
are participated in the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme and the
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government
in the PRC, respectively. These schemes are defined contribution
schemes to which a certain proportion of the employees’ payroll is
contributed monthly. The contributions are vested with the employees
when contributed and no contribution would be forfeited by the
Group to reduce existing levels of contribution if the employee
resigned.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENm&R DN

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EEREREIEE
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of the senior management of the Group by band EHZE-—E-—®F+-A=+—HIEEAEH
and the respective number of persons for the year ended 31 SREEEBNTMEE LEBBEASIT -
December 2022 are set out below:

Number of

Persons

Remuneration Band HiMEEE AB
HK$500,001 to HK$1,500,000 500,001 &7 2 1,500,000 /7T 2

Further details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid EZHMEk AL RS MES#E — S5
employees are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements, 2 IR B SRR FES K29 -
respectively.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND IRBBUR MR
PERFORMANCE

The Group actively fulfils its social responsibilities of protecting the HRNEEBRBEITERERBENLSET  US
environment and plays an exemplary role by undertaking the mission ~ EBI| - FAE R S EHTH SBRIRTB N Eap o
of promoting social environmental protection activities. The Group  ANEBEMEERBGHEITIREES - WiHR
gives due consideration to environmental philosophy in property {RITENTER| B H AP - SaLEEE E& T E
management, and incorporates environmentally friendly practices into BT AEBERERBNAERET B HER
its daily course of business to save energy and reduce emissions, 4k S - HERREEEEEBTRER
performing its commitments and obligations of protecting the [HRE @ SiHFE/KAE @ ZERIEN R NMIKA
environment in all aspects and contributing to creating a green and  IREM B -

harmonious society. Such environmental initiatives include but are not

limited to noise control, water and energy conservation, handling

construction waste properly as well as using environmentally friendly

materials.

Please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of FEZH AR B HEHAERIRE -+ RER
the Group published by the Company. e o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s business is mainly operated by its subsidiaries
incorporated or established in the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and the PRC and the Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and is a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Therefore, the Group should comply with relevant laws and
regulations of the Cayman Islands, British Virgin Islands, the PRC and
Hong Kong. The Group will seek professional legal opinions from its
legal department and legal advisers when necessary to ensure that
the Group'’s transactions and business activities are in conformity with
all applicable laws and regulations.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group always adheres to the principle that “People Are The Most
Important Resources” and the policy of “Human-Based
Management”. The Group recognises value of its employees, and
pays much attention to their development, bringing their potentials
into play and encouraging them to learn and grow, with a view to
stimulating employees’ personal growth through corporate
development and promoting corporate progress through employee
development, thus achieving win-win situation for the Group and its
employees.

The Group maintains a solid relationship with its existing and
prospective customers, which plays a vital role in the development
and success of the Group. The Group pays close attention to how the
number of visitors affects the operation of tenants. In order to
enhance the customers’ satisfaction of the shopping malls operated
by the Group, the Group has developed CRM Membership and Sales
System, which covers membership promotion and registration,
membership level, membership benefits and other aspects of the
membership program, enhancing the Group’s ability to improve and
maintain members’ loyalty, and eventually increase the number of
visitors. The Group will also communicate with tenants regularly in
order to ensure the continuing improvement on the service quality of
mall management.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group also establishes long-term collaboration with
subcontractors, while maximising its efforts to ensure its adherence to
the objective of providing customers with premium property
management services. The Group selects qualified subcontractors
through tender process in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations, and conducts thorough due diligence review over such
subcontractors. Successful tenderers are selected based on a variety of
factors, including costs, quality of services performed, manpower
distribution, safety measures and standards, equipment and facilities
and the industrial experience of managers.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES

There was no significant investments, material acquisition and disposal
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the Year.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Use of Net Proceeds from
Initial Public Offering” below, as at the date of approval of this annual
report, the Group did not have any concrete future plan for material
investments or capital assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BN DA

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The Company'’s ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (the “Shares”) were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 2 July 2021 (the
“Listing Date”). The listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing”) constituted a spin-off from China SCE
Holdings. In connection with the Listing, the Company issued
575,000,000 Shares (including the Shares issued from the full exercise
of the over-allotment option) with an offer price of HK$3.7 per share.
The Company raised a total net proceeds (including the net proceeds
from the full exercise of the over-allotment option) of approximately
HK$2,037.5 million (the “Net Proceeds”).

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 21 June 2021,
the intended use of the Net Proceeds is as follows: (i) approximately
50% (or approximately HK$1,018.8 million) will be used for strategic
acquisitions and investments in other property management
companies and service providers to expand the Group’s business and
diversify the types of services; (ii) approximately 25% (or
approximately HK$509.4 million) will be used for investment in
technology to improve service quality, customer experience and
engagement and enhance operational efficiency; (iii) approximately
10% (or approximately HK$203.7 million) will be used to expand
businesses along the value chain and diversify the types of value-
added services; (iv) approximately 5% (or approximately HK$101.9
million) will be used to attract, develop and retain talents to support
the Group’s development; and (v) approximately 10% (or
approximately HK$203.7 million) will be used for general business
purposes and as working capital.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table sets forth the status of use of Net Proceeds from
the Company’s initial public offering as at 31 December 2022:

EEEFNWR DN

THEHNA A B E R AFEE S RIEFREN
FRABR(EE-E-_—F+=-A=+—A8):

Intended Actual
Use of Use of Proceeds
Net Proceeds Net Proceeds Unused  Expected Timeline
FiBRE FiBRE
Intended Use FEH FEH KRB
as Stated in the Prospectus BRERfMABEAR Remz BERAZ FEHE ROANER
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
BEET BEET BEET
(i) Strategic acquisitions and investments in (i)  E{BEUREE RIRE EfE 1,018.8 - 1,018.8  On or before 31 December 2025
other property management companies EE DA LRBREE ZEZRFTZR=1-H
and service providers o OART
(i) Investment in technology (i) ®ERE 509.4 23.6 4858  On or before 31 December 2025
Sk 2y g oy =
AR
(iii) Expand businesses along the value chain (i) EEEEMS FE - 203.7 143 189.4  On or before 31 December 2025
and diversify the types of value-added THTEREERSESR “EoRETZA=1+-H
services AR
(iv) Attract, develop and retain talents (v) W3l BENEBEAL 101.9 101.9 - Onor before 31 December 2025
Sk 2y g oy =
AR
(v)  General business purposes and as V) —MERBRELEE 203.7 203.7 - Onor before 31 December 2025
working capital LEED “E-RF+-A=1-H
S OAR]
2,037.5 343.5 1,694.0

The Net Proceeds was used as intended following the Listing and up
to 31 December 2022 as set out above and the utilised portion is
expected to be applied for the intended use and according to the
expected timeline as set out above.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Company repurchased a total of 60,000,000 Shares at an
aggregate purchase price of HK$114,786,000 on the Stock Exchange
during the period from 11 to 13 January 2023 and from 16 to 19
January 2023, These repurchased Shares were cancelled on 6 February
2023.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENSHNEEANEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wong Lun (ZEf®) (“Mr. Wong”), aged 35, was appointed as a director
(“Director”) of the Board on 20 August 2019, and was re-designated
as the executive Director and chairman of the Board on 6 January
2021.
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) since 10

He was appointed as the chairman of the nomination

June 2021, and is also the director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company established in the PRC, Hong Kong and the BVI. He is
primarily responsible for strategic planning, implementing policies and
guidelines, making major decisions and the overall operations of the
Group. He joined the Group in September 2010 as an assistant to
general manager of commercial management business of the Group,
and became the general manager of Shanghai China SCE Commercial
Management Co., Ltd. in November 2013, where he is mainly
responsible for its strategic planning and daily operations. Mr. Wong
has over 10 years of experience in the property development and
property management industries. He served as a general manager at
the procurement department of the China SCE Group from
September 2011 to June 2013, primarily responsible for procurement
and business management. He has been serving as an assistant
president of the China SCE Group since February 2017 and an
executive director since March 2017, where he is mainly responsible
for investors relations and commercial management. Mr. Wong
graduated from the School of Engineering of University of Warwick
with a Bachelor’s degree of Science in Engineering and Business
Studies in 2010. Mr. Wong holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from China Europe International Business
School.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND

Niu Wei (41&) (“Mr. Niu"”), aged 60, was appointed as an executive
Director on 6 January 2021. He is also the chief executive officer and
is primarily responsible for the overall operation and management of
the commercial property management business of the Group, and
also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company established in
the PRC. He joined the Group in July 2019 as the president and was
mainly responsible for the overall operation and management. Prior to
joining the Group, from June 2016 to July 2018, he worked at New
World Department Stores China Limited (“New World Department
Stores”), a company principally engaged in chain department store
business in the PRC and listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0825), where he was appointed as the chief
executive officer in March 2017 and was mainly responsible for its
overall operational management and business expansion in the PRC.
From October 2014 to May 2016, he served as a vice president and
chief operating officer at Intime Retail (Group) Company Limited, a
company principally engaged in the operation and management of
domestic department stores and shopping centers, the shares of
which were previously listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and was privatized, where he was mainly responsible for its overall
operational management of commercial business and business
development. From April 2014 to October 2014, he served as a senior
assistant to president at Wanda Group Share Co., Ltd, a company
principally engaged in commercial property business, where he was
mainly responsible for the overall management of its department
store business. From June 1996 to March 2014, he served as a
regional general manager of Central and Southwest China at New
World Department Stores, where he was mainly responsible its
regional management and business development. Mr. Niu graduated
and obtained a Diploma in Law from Nanjing University, and a Master
degree in Business Administration from Fudan University.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEAERBE

Sun Qiang (&5 ) (“Mr. Sun”), aged 41, was appointed as an executive
Director on 6 January 2021. He was appointed as a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) since 10 June 2021 and is also the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC. He is primarily
responsible for the overall management of the residential property
management business of the Group. He joined the Group in May
2017 and was promoted as vice president in August 2020. Prior to
joining the Group, from May 2015 to May 2017, he served as a
Ltd, an
information and communication technology solution provider, where

human resources director at Huawei Zhongduan Co.,

he was responsible for its human resources. From September 2013 to
April 2015, he served as a manager of consulting department at
PricewaterhouseCoopers Consulting (Shenzhen) Holdings Limited, a
consulting firm, where he was responsible for its consulting business.
From April 2010 to August 2013, he served as a senior manager of
human resources department at Vishay Components (Huizhou) Co.,
Ltd., a discrete semiconductor and passive electronic device
manufacturer, where he was responsible for its human resources. Mr.
Sun obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting from Hohai University
in 2003, and a Master’s degree in Business Administration from
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in 2012.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND

Zheng Quanlou (2 #8) (“Mr. Zheng"), aged 51, was appointed as
an executive Director on 6 January 2021. He is primarily responsible
for implementing strategies in respect of the commercial property
management and operational services business and commercial
design services business of the Group. He joined the Group in January
2006 as a project manager and was mainly responsible for project
design and planning matters. Mr. Zheng has over 20 years of
experience in the property development and property management
industries. Mr. Zheng joined the China SCE Group in 1998 as a project
manager. He was promoted to general manager of design
management department of the China SCE Group in January 2008
and was mainly responsible for its design management and daily
management. He served as an assistant president of the China SCE
Group from January 2014 to January 2016 and was promoted to a
vice president in January 2016, primarily responsible for its operation
plan and design management. He was further promoted to the
executive president of the China SCE Group in August 2018 and is
primarily responsible for its operation plan, design management,
construction management and cost management. Mr. Zheng
graduated from Fujian Agriculture and Forestry University with a
major in Civil Engineering in 2009. He was registered as a cost
engineer by Fujian Provincial Department of Personnel in August
1999.

Ku Weihong (EE&4L) (“Ms. Ku"), aged 54, was appointed as an executive
Director on 6 January 2021. She is primarily responsible for overseeing
the legal affairs and human resources. She joined the Group in
November 2010 as the director of legal department and was mainly
responsible for legal affairs and property management. Ms. Ku joined
the China SCE Group in November 2010, and served various positions
including director of legal department from November 2010 to
December 2010, general manager of auditing and legal department
from January 2011 to October 2011, general manager of executive
president office from November 2011 to January 2014, and assistant
president since January 2014, where she was mainly responsible for
its legal affairs and human resources matters. From July 2000 to
September 2010, she served as director of legal department at
Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Limited, a property developer listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1238), where
she was mainly responsible for its legal affairs. Ms. Ku obtained a
Bachelor’s degree in Economic Law in 1990 and a Master’s degree in
Business Administration in 2017, both from Peking University.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEAERBE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Huang Youquan (Z &) (“Mr. Huang"”), aged 54, was appointed
as the non-executive Director on 6 January 2021. He was appointed
as a member of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) since 10 June 2021. He is primarily responsible for
providing guidance for the overall operation of the Group. Mr. Huang
joined the China SCE Group in January 2010 as a vice president, and
was promoted as an executive president in August 2018. He has been
serving as an executive director of China SCE Holdings since May
2011, and has been primarily responsible for its financial and treasury
management. Prior to joining the China SCE Group, from February
2006 to December 2009, he served as general manager at Kato SCE
(Xiamen) Construction Machinery Co., Ltd, where he was mainly
responsible for its overall operational management. From August
2003 to February 2006, he served as a finance director at South China
Heavy Industry (Xiamen) Co., Ltd., where he was mainly responsible
for its financial and treasury management. Mr. Huang obtained a
Bachelor’s degree of Science in Mathematics from Xiamen University
in 1991.
Administration program at Xiamen University. Mr. Huang was certified
as a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC in May 1996, and a
registered asset appraiser in December 1998, both by Ministry of
Finance of the PRC.

He also completed an Executive Master of Business

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited

PREEERRBERARAR

FRTES

BEWE(TEELEE]D 54 R —F—
ARBEZERIATESE -H_T——FR
A+HERERERARAEZEZES ([EX
ZEE®ZE -WIBAEARAEEBELE
ReftiEsl - EEER T -TF-AMAHRE
S8 EEIRE YR _F-N\FNABET
RPTER - FE-T——FRABRETHRE
BERATES  TERAAMBRESERE - R
MAREREER RR_TTRF_AE_

FAF+ZARMBETEL (EF) ZRARRQF]
BEERKE T2REBREETE - _-F

ZE=FNRE-ZTTRF A ERPFRET
(EF) BRAREEMBELE  T2AEMHK

REZER - BEREN-NN—FEEFEMK
BHEHEXEEEL B - RIFETKEMAKX
BeRERAEIRHERELRE BELES
AR—ANRNFRAR-—ANNE+T - AP
EARANMEM B RERDEZME 6K
AEf & ERHGED o

Annual Report 2022
B FFR



BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ding Zuyu (T#8£) (“Dr. Ding"), aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 June 2021. He was appointed as a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee since 10 June 2021. Dr. Ding is responsible for providing
independent advice on the operations and management of the Board.
Dr. Ding has been serving as an executive director and chief executive
officer of E-House (China) Enterprise Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2048),
since March 2018 where he has been primarily responsible for
overseeing the management and strategic development of the group.
He has been the president of the real estate data and consulting
services division of E-House Enterprise (China) Group Co., Ltd. since
July 2006 and its chief executive officer since August 2016. Dr. Ding
has been an independent non-executive director of Powerlong Real
Estate Holdings Limited, a property developer listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1238), since December
2014, and an independent non-executive director of Greentown
Management Holdings Company Limited, a project management
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
9979), since July 2020.

Wang Yongping (E k) (“Mr. Wang”), aged 54, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 10 June 2021. He was
appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee since 10 June 2021. Mr. Wang is responsible for providing
independent advice on the operations and management of the Board.
Since December 2019, Mr. Wang has been serving as an independent
director at Easyhome New Retail Group Co., Ltd., a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000785). Since November
2021, Mr. Wang has been serving as an independent director at
MINISO Group Holding Limited, a company listed on New York Stock
Exchange (stock code: MNSO) and a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 9896). Mr. Wang has been
serving as the president of China Commercial Real Estate Association
since August 2016 and a vice president of China Business Economics
Association since April 2018. He was qualified to serve as a mentor of
the master of business administration center at the school of
economics and management of Tongji University.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEAERBE

Pang Hon Chung (% &) (“Mr. Pang”), aged 49, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 10 June 2021. He was
appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the
Audit Committee since 10 June 2021. Mr. Pang is responsible for
providing independent advice on the operations and management of
the Board. Mr. Pang has over 20 years of professional accounting
experience and considerable experience in special assurance and
advisory assignments in relation to corporate restructurings and fund
raising exercises. He also has extensive experience in corporate audits
and consulting of pre-listing and listed companies, and medium to
large private entities. Mr. Pang had worked at Ernst & Young for over
eight years and subsequently joined ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited in
March 2010, and he has been a partner of the firm since January
2014. Since June 2018, Mr. Pang has been serving as an independent
non-executive director at Tianyuan Group Holdings Limited, a
company principally engaged in cargo uploading and related ancillary
value-added port services and listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 6119). Mr. Pang has been a Certified Public
Accountant recognized by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “"HKICPA") since April 2001. He has also been a
member of the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors since
August 2014.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Xu Liping (REESE) (“Ms. Xu"), aged 53, joined the Group in September
2019 and has been serving as the general manager of operation
management department since then. Ms. Xu is primarily responsible
for overseeing the commercial operation management business. Prior
to joining the Group, from September 1994 to February 2019, Ms. Xu
successively served as the general manager of regional commercial
business, store general manager and general manager of southwest
region at New World Department Stores, where she was mainly
responsible for its overall operational management and project
development prior to her departure. Ms. Xu obtained a Diploma in
Industrial Enterprise Management from Hubei Radio & TV University in
the PRC in July 1990 and completed the advanced training courses in
high-end retail provided by China Europe International Business
School in the PRC in August 2018.

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited

PREEERRBERARAR

ERB(ZEE]D 9% RZTEZ—FX
ATEERERBUIFRTEST A _F_——
FAATHERBEZERFHEZE G RERE
BEE@XF ZRLAEANEZTELENEER
HBURR -ZAAEHABE_TFNEXS
S TERBCREANEEEPNEIR
RERFATETEREEELER - RN EL
MR R EMARARRFRLLEEERNEESR
AINEATEREEERR - EAEGNLK
SEIFMEBAERBRN\F  HER T —-F
FZAMAFEREGHMEFMARRAT
BEEEFHSALE 8T —HF— AKX
REZRANEBA - BT \F AR ¥
FE-—BREERREEEZERBRAR(—KE
ZNEEYRFLEREEEESDREHOQ
A R EAR LT (ARG K5R : 6119))
MBI IERITES - ZREB _TZE—FNHA
EAEEEMASRAIEXSM -8 -F
—ENAR  BRASBEEEAGHMASE

o

\

SREBAS

#EE((ffxt]) 53 RZE—AFN
AMAREE - Bt —BEREELEELAL
B GRUTTBEAREERELEER - 1N
AREHR  R—hWARFAAE-T-NF
“H BRRTEFERAAEEE  CEECES
RIS EACIR - PIERRIE  BHERTRERLA
AHERELE T2 EMEREMNERL
EEEREBFRE - RAIR—NANTFLH
ESPEHILERERABRIXLREEX
& ARR—FE—N\FN\AEEHETEBEEK
THSRNEHTEER/RE

Annual Report 2022
R FFR



BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND

Kwan Kwong Cho (E¥£48) (“Mr. Kwan"), aged 36, joined the Group
in January 2021 and has been serving as the deputy finance director
and company secretary since then. Mr. Kwan is primarily responsible
for financial and company secretarial matters of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, from October 2018 to January 2021, Mr. Kwan
served as the finance manager of Yuzhou Group Holdings Company
Limited, a property developer listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1628), where he was mainly responsible for its
financial management system and budget review. From September
2011 to September 2018, Mr. Kwan successively served as a senior
accountant and audit manager at Ernst & Young and was mainly
responsible for managing its audit projects. Mr. Kwan obtained a
Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in October 2011. He has been a Certified Public
Accountant of the HKICPA since January 2015, and obtained the
practising status in 2020. Mr. Kwan has been an Associate Chartered
Accountant of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales since January 2022.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Kwan Kwong Cho (¥ #8), a member of senior management of the
Group, is the deputy finance director and company secretary of the
Company. The biography of Mr. Kwan is set forth above.
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The Company has been committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance so as to enhance the operational efficiency of
the Company. The Company believes that such commitment is
beneficial to safeguard the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

During the Year, the Company and the Board had applied the
principles of and complied with the applicable code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) effective during the
Year as set out in Part 2 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for securities transactions
by directors.

The Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all
the Directors confirmed that they have strictly complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the Year.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

The members of the Board of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Lun (Chairman)
Mr. Niu Wei

Mr. Sun Qiang

Mr. Zheng Quanlou

Ms. Ku Weihong

Non-executive Director
Mr. Huang Youquan

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Ding Zuyu

Mr. Wang Yongping

Mr. Pang Hon Chung
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Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Biography of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report. There is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships between
Board members.

Mr. Pang Hon Chung, one of the independent non-executive
Directors, has considerable experience in accounting and financial
management, which is in line with the requirement of Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules which states that “at least one of the independent
non-executive directors must have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise”.

In accordance with the provision C.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company
has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the Directors in respect
of any possible legal action against them.

In accordance with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the Nomination
Committee shall have a policy concerning diversity of Board members.
In formulating its nomination policy, the Company has created
measurable targets in the following areas, including expertise,
experience, knowledge, professional skills, education background,
independence, age, etc. In doing so, the Company can ensure its
Directors reach the eligible level in terms of their expertise, industrial
experience, education background, independence, age and other
factors, which enable them to make corresponding contributions to
the Board whenever necessary and practicable. The Company and the
Nomination Committee periodically review the nomination policy and
are open to adopt further measurable objectives in the future based
on the business needs of the Company and to keep pace with the
prevailing regulatory requirements and good corporate governance
practice. Please refer to the paragraph headed “Nomination
Committee” of this corporate governance report regarding details of
the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) adopted by
the Board and progress on achieving the measurable objectives to
implement the Board Diversity Policy.

In accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, for each financial
year, the company secretary of an issuer must take no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Company confirmed that the company secretary
of the Company, Mr. Kwan Kwong Cho, had participated in proper
training programmes for not less than 15 hours to ensure his expertise
is in line with all the requirements as applicable to him.
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In accordance with the provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year ended 31
December 2022, all the Directors have complied with the requirement
of provision C.1.4 of the CG Code through attending trainings and/or
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or to director’s
duties and responsibilities.

Name of Directors

RBTRIECIAGRE  EESER2ER
BEXRRR EREEFEMB NG -BE
—E_F+-_A=1T—HULEFE FRE=E
EEBHERIRRMERRADREBEKE
EBENMNEERHENENUNSETRIEC14
fFRARE

Trainings on Corporate
Governance, Regulatory
Development and
Other Relevant Topics

TEEL BEERER
EENg HihAHEE EEEZ
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong Lun il v
Mr. Niu Wei H{EEA v
Mr. Sun Qiang FRoR ST v
Mr. Zheng Quanlou B2 A v
Ms. Ku Weihong EEEHT et v
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Huang Youquan =W A v
Independent non-executive Directors BUHHTEE
Dr. Ding Zuyu THEBLT v
Mr. Wang Yongping FokFRAE v
Mr. Pang Hon Chung TEREA v

Directors’ Responsibilities

The Board is responsible to all shareholders for supervising and
overseeing all major matters of the Company, including the
formulation and approval of overall management and operation
strategies, reviewing the internal control and risk management
systems, reviewing financial performance, considering dividend policy
and monitoring the performance of the senior management, so as to
achieve high efficiency in relevant business of the Company. The
senior management is responsible for the daily management and
specific operation of the Group.
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Directors’ Attendance Record at Meetings

Pursuant to the provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, the board of issuers
should meet regularly and board meetings should be held at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the Company has held five board meetings. It is
considered that the Directors were well acknowledged of the
operation of the Group for the year under review. The attendance of
each Director for the board meetings and general meetings of the
Company is contained in the following table:

TRERWE

ESHEERCR

BETFRECSIERE  BTANESSE
THHRE  EFELRETFEREZLTX -
ANBEFEE-—R - BEZZTE-_—_F+=A
=T+ —BLEFE ZMEBRAAEEE - &
MEESNESHASERDBEFANES
RANIE - SEFZNEBEEARARRAESE
EHREBRRASBERIEN THIRE

Number of Number of
Attendances/ Attendances/
Number of Number of

Board Meetings General Meetings
HERE HERE
EXZge8A8 RRASZFIRH

Executive Directors: HITESE :
Mr. Wong Lun EimitE
Mr. Niu Wei R4
Mr. Sun Qiang R84
Mr. Zheng Quanlou BB A
Ms. Ku Weihong B4 2+
Non-executive Director: FHITESE :
Mr. Huang Youquan =W A
Independent non-executive BYHBITESE :
Directors:
Dr. Ding Zuyu THERLT
Mr. Wang Yongping FoKFRAE
Mr. Pang Hon Chung TERLA

1 Except for chairman of the Company, Mr. Wong Lun, all executive Directors
and the non-executive Director were exempted from attending the board
meeting held on 30 August 2022 in which the composition, duties and
responsibilities of the executive Directors were discussed.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year ended 31
December 2022, Mr. Wong Lun and Mr. Niu Wei performed their
duties as the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company
respectively.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have been instrumental in
ensuring independent views and input are available to the Board. The
Board has received the written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, confirming that he has met the
independence requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board considers that all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent under these independence requirements.

The independent non-executive Directors play an important role in
applying their independent analysis and professional judgments to
provide a professional and fair view to the decisions of the Board. This
is not only beneficial to the warranty of the scientific element of the
decision, but also enhancing the protection of interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

The Nomination Committee and the Board are committed to review
and assess the Directors’ independence annually in order to ensure
that independent views and input of the independent non-executive
Directors are made available to the Board. Factors taken into account
in such independence review include, and are not limited to, the
following:

(1) required character, integrity, perspectives, skills, expertise and
experience to fulfill their roles;

(2) time commitment and attention to the Company’s affairs;
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(3) firm commitment to their independent roles and to the Board,;

(4) declaration of conflicts of interest (if any) in their roles as
independent non-executive Directors;

(5)  noinvolvement in the daily management of the Company nor in
any relationship or circumstances which would affect the
exercise of their independent judgement; and

(6) further reappointment of an independent non-executive
Director (including any long-serving independent non-executive
Director, where applicable) is subject to a separate resolution to
be approved by the shareholders.

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors’ Service Contracts” in
the “Report of the Directors” of this annual report for the term of
appointment of independent non-executive Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the provisions of the CG Code, the Company established
its Remuneration Committee on 10 June 2021. Under Rule 3.25 of
the Listing Rules, the remuneration committee of issuers must appoint
an independent non-executive director as the chairman, and the
majority of the members shall be independent non-executive directors.
The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Sun Qiang (an executive
Director) and Dr. Ding Zuyu (an independent non-executive Director)
and is chaired by Mr. Pang Hon Chung (an independent non-executive
Director).
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The prime duties of the Remuneration Committee are:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

o to assess performance of executive Directors and approve the
terms of the service contracts of the executive Directors;

o to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management; and

o to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting to discuss the 2021 management bonus and 2022 salary
under the service contracts for executive Directors. Details of the
attendance by members of the Remuneration Committee are set out
as below:

FHEZEENTIERAER

s HARAEBERSREBASNTBH
B SR Ko 2848 » M Bt aR 3L IE#R 1 A 3% B
EHIEFr ] HBHEGR - MEZ SR
f=E

o FHAERTEENRREMERITESR
B ARG

s NEZRCEEZENRNTESLRSLERE
AEWEMEFS &

o  BIFMTEFENFHREFSRLES

EEFAN FMEESRRAT — RS ' W
ﬂﬂ§$f;f—¢g@ EAR B _FR
BERFMEE - SKERFTHEZEESSEL
BRI EERAT

Number of
Attendance/ Total
Number of Meeting
HERY, ERER

Mr. Pang Hon Chung TEBREAE
Mr. Sun Qiang R85
Dr. Ding Zuyu THERLT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

According to the provisions of the CG Code, the Company established
the Nomination Committee on 10 June 2021. Under Rule 3.27A of
the Listing Rules, the majority of the nomination committee of issuers
must be independent non-executive directors, and the chairman of
the board or an independent non-executive director must be
appointed as the chairman of this committee. The Nomination
Committee comprises independent non-executive Directors Dr. Ding
Zuyu and Mr. Wang Yongping and is chaired by Mr. Wong Lun,
chairman of the Board and an executive Director.
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The prime duties of the Nomination Committee are:

° to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

o to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board based on, amongst others, the Board Diversity Policy
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

o to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and

o to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors,
succession planning for Directors in particular the chairman and
chief executive officer and the policy concerning the diversity of
Board members.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to discuss the composition of the Board and the terms of
reference, the diversity policies for the Board, and other issues. Details
of the attendance by members of the Nomination Committee are set
out as below:
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BIE - EHERIRERZEERRNERNLREE
SLAAT ¢

Number of
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Number of Meeting

HERE SREH

Mr. Wong Lun =fm A 1”71
Dr. Ding Zuyu THEBSLT 11
Mr. Wang Yongping FoxTFHRAE 1/1
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The Company and the Nomination Committee periodically review the
nomination policy and monitor the progress on achieving the
following measurable objectives (the “Measurable Objectives”) which
have been set for implementing diversity on the composition of Board.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, under the Board Diversity
Policy, the Board has adopted and the Company has fully achieved
the following Measurable Objectives:

(@) To ensure at least two members of the Board shall have
obtained accounting or other professional qualification;

(b) To ensure at least 33% of the members of the Board have more
than 10 years of experience in real estate development or
property management;

(c)  To ensure the appropriate proportion of the independent non-
executive Directors to the executive Directors in order to
maintain the independence of the Board. In particular, at least
33% of the members of the Board shall be independent non-
executive Directors;

(d) To ensure at least 60% of the members of the Board shall have
attained Bachelor’s degree or higher level of education;

(e) To ensure the age distribution of the members of the Board is
such that the Board comprised of people from at least three

decades; and

(f)  To ensure at least one member of the Board shall be female.
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In terms of gender diversity, while there has already been one female
director on the Board as at 31 December 2022, the Company and the
Nomination Committee recognise the importance and benefits of
gender diversity at the Board level and are committed to continue to
identify female candidates and ensure at least one member of the
Board shall be female.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 3,200 male employees (31
December 2021: 2,987 male employees) and 1,978 female employees
(31 December 2021:
female ratio in the workforce, including the senior management, was
approximately 1:0.62 (31 December 2021: 1:0.67), which is regarded
by the Board as satisfactory and in line with the industry which the

1,999 female employees) and the male-to-

Group operates its businesses in.

The Company will continue to take gender diversity into consideration
during recruitment and increase the female proportion at all levels
over time with the ultimate goal of achieving gender parity, such that
there is a pipeline of female senior management and potential
successors to the Board in the future.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

According to the provisions of the CG Code, the Company established
the Audit Committee on 10 June 2021. Under Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules, the audit committee of issuers must comprise only non-
executive directors. The Audit Committee comprises Mr. Huang
Youquan (a non-executive Director) and Mr. Wang Yongping (an
independent non-executive Director) and is chaired by Mr. Pang Hon
Chung (an independent non-executive Director).
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EERAWSE

The prime duties of the Audit Committee are:

responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and other terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, interim report and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them; and

oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems and review the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two

it
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meetings to review the 2021 annual report and the 2022 interim FARGR T - —FFEREN T __FF
report of the Company. Details of the attendance by members of the Eﬂqﬁ&%}&ﬁ%@ﬁ c BEXENEZEZEETEN
Audit Committee are set out as below: BRI EERAT
Number of
Attendances/Total
Number of Meetings
HERY, SRE-
Mr. Pang Hon Chung TEBREE 2/2
Mr. Huang Youquan =W A 2/2
Mr. Wang Yongping FokFRAE 2/2
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year under review, the fees paid to the auditor of the
Company, Ernst & Young, in respect of the audit services and non-
audit services provided to the Company amounted to approximately
RMB1.9 million and approximately RMB1.0 million, respectively. Non-
audit services mainly consisted of advisory and other services.

The Audit Committee is responsible to recommend to the Board on
matters related to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
the auditor. The Audit Committee recommended the re-appointment
of Ernst & Young as the external auditor of the Group for the year
ending 31 December 2023, subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, and
confirm that the financial statements give a true view of the financial
position and results of the Group as at the date and for the year of
the date ended, and are prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The statement
of the external auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young, about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 86 to 93 of this
annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is fully responsible for maintaining proper and effective
internal controls and for regularly reviewing the operational efficiency
of the financial, operational, compliance, risk controls, human
resources and other aspects of the system in order to safeguard the
independence of the respective duties and powers of the Group
which in turn can protect the investment of shareholders and the
assets of the Company.
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The Internal Audit and Compliance Department of the Company,
being the Company’s internal audit function, is responsible for regular
review and audit of the finance and operation of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the purpose of ensuring the internal controls are in
place and functioning properly as intended. For weaknesses of
internal controls and accounting procedures of the Group which the
external auditor have identified and reported to the Company, the
Company would pay full attention to the recommendations made by
the external auditor and make appropriate improvements.

Besides, the Company has also appointed Ernst & Young (China)
Advisory Limited to review the internal controls of the selected
processes of the selected entities of the Group. The 2022 internal
control assessment report revealed that no material control weakness
was identified.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
their effectiveness and concluded that the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group were adequate and effective
during the Year.

The Company has the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. In practice,
employees of the Group who become aware of any events and/or
matters which he/she considers potentially inside information, will
report to the designated personnel of the Company who, if
considered appropriate, will pass such information to the Board for
the purpose of considering and deciding whether or not such
information constitutes inside information and disclosure of which
shall be made immediately.

The aforementioned risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
COMMUNICATIONS POLICY

Establishing a good relationship with investors plays a vital role in
enhancing the operational efficiency of the Company and in
protecting interests of the shareholders. The Company insists a
transparent, honest and timely disclosure of related information on
the business development of the Company through various channels
to ensure that the shareholders and investors have an adequate
understanding of the operations of the Company.

The Company’s website at www.sce-icm.com provides information
such as e-mail address, correspondence address, telephone numbers,
etc. for making inquiries to the Company in order to maintain
effective communication with its shareholders and investors. In
addition, interim and annual reports, circulars and notices of the
Company will be despatched to shareholders in compliance with the
Listing Rules and the same will also be published on the website of
the Company and that of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

During the year, the Company participated in various non-deal
roadshows to enhance the industry awareness of the Company. The
management believes actively seeking face-to-face communication
with shareholders and investors is the best way to enhance their
confidence in the Company.

The Company’s annual general meeting of shareholders is a good
opportunity for communication between the Board and shareholders
of the Company. Notice of annual general meeting and related
documents will be sent to the shareholders pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, and will be published on the
website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and that of the Company.

The Board has reviewed the implementation of the shareholders’
communications policy and is satisfied that it is effective for the Board
to understand the views and opinion of the shareholders through the
available channels.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

1. Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

1.1

The following procedures for shareholders (the

“Shareholders”, each a “Shareholder”) of the Company

to convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM")

of the Company are prepared in accordance with Article

58 of the articles of association of the Company:

)

One or more Shareholders (the “Requisitionist(s)”)
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right, by
written requisition (the “Requisition”), to require an
EGM to be called by the Directors for the transaction
of any business specified therein.

Such Requisition shall be made in writing to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company via
email at the email address of the Company at
ir_cm@sce-icm.com.

The EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such Requisition.

If the Board fail to proceed to convene such meeting
within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of such
Requisition, the Requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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2. Procedures for raising enquiries

2.1 Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividend to the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar,
details of which are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.

2.2 Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in respect
of the Company via email at the email address of the
Company at ir_cm@sce-icm.com.

2.3 Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions
together with their detailed contact information for the
prompt response from the Company if it deems
appropriate.

3. Procedures and contact details for putting
forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

3.1 To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the
Company, a Shareholder should lodge a written notice of
his/her/its proposal (the “Proposal”) with his/her/its
detailed contact information via email at the email address
of the Company at ir_cm@sce-icm.com.

3.2 The identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its request will
be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar
and upon confirmation by the branch share registrar that
the request is made by a Shareholder and such request is
proper and in order, the Board will determine in its sole
discretion whether the Proposal may be included in the
agenda for the general meeting to be set out in the notice
of meeting.

3.3 The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the
nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) Notice of not less than 21 clear days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval in an annual general
meeting;

(2)  Notice of not less than 14 clear days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval in an EGM.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 24 June
2022, a special resolution was passed to approve the proposed
adoption of a new set of amended and restated articles of association
of the Company incorporating amendments made for the purposes
of, among others, (i) allowing general meetings to be held as an
electronic meeting (also referred to as virtual meeting) or a hybrid
meeting; (ii) bringing the articles of association in line with
amendments to the Listing Rules and applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands; and (iii) making certain minor housekeeping amendments to
the articles of association for the purpose of clarifying existing practice
and making consequential amendments in line with the amendments
to the articles of association. The full text of the articles of association
of the Company is available on the website of the Stock Exchange
and that of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in commercial property management
and operational services and residential property management services
in the PRC during the year. Details of the principal activities of the
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please refer to the subsections headed “Market Review”, “Business
Review”, “Financial Review"”, “Environmental Policies and
Performance”, “Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations”
and “Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers” in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” and the
section headed “Chairman’s Statement — Outlook” of this annual
report , which form part of the contents of the business review of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 as contained in this
Report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group'’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
Group's financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 94 to 202.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Any declaration of dividends will depend upon a number of factors
including our earnings and financial condition, operating
requirements, capital requirements and any other conditions that our
Directors may deem relevant and will be subject to the approval of
our shareholders. There is no assurance that dividends of any amount
will be declared or distributed in any given year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the published audited financial statements and the Company’s
prospectus dated 21 June 2021, is set out on pages 203 to 204. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes 13 and
14 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements, certain related
party transactions of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2022 constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Company as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had the
following connected transaction that is not exempt from the annual
reporting requirement in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

Loan to a subsidiary of China SCE Holdings

On 24 November 2022, Shanghai China SCE Commercial
Management Co., Ltd. (the “Lender”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan
Agreement”) with Shanghai Zhongjun Property Co., Ltd. (the
“Borrower”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of China SCE
Holdings, pursuant to which the Lender has agreed to advance to the
Borrower a loan for a fixed term commencing from the date of
drawdown and ending on 31 December 2024 in the principal amount
of up to RMB900.0 million at an interest rate of 7.0% per annum for
the purpose of replenishing the working capital of China SCE
Holdings. The Borrower was an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
China SCE Holdings, a controlling shareholder of the Company, and
was therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules as at the date of the Loan Agreement.

Annual Report 2022

—TFFER

EEEWE

AN SRR S FERNEE  — 2=
F+ZA=+—HAFREAEENE THEB AR
SIER FTREE AAZFAENEES S
FFBEAERS - ARFIEEST ETARAES
FIAAZERBTEMRT o

BE_ - F+-_A=+—HILFE X%
EENTHERS T TREERE EHRAE
14AZERNFERIRIAT ¢

ERFHRRERNHELQR

R-ZE-—F+—A=-+WMBE  XARIMREE
2EWBAR LERHREETREERAT(E
TADEEEPEEXERAFT(TERALD
(REEERNEEZENBAR) FTERHE
([Ex#mZ]D Bt - ERAREREBRAR
N—SFHERIZARE_ZE-_NF+=A
“+—HBLEMNER A TBBARKIE
TC FHREET0% 0 BRI BRI S
EED o [BRABRNR BRI R A BRI AR A
HE2EWB AR - ARE EmEARER
B ARRTMEEAL -

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
PEREEERREERARAA

71



72

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The following transactions constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022,
which are subject to the reporting and annual review requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

1. Car Parking Lots and Public Area Leasing

On 17 June 2021, the Company entered into a master car
parking lots and public area leasing agreement (the “Master Car
Parking Lots and Public Area Leasing Agreement”) with China
SCE Holdings, a controlling shareholder, pursuant to which the
Group will lease from the China SCE Group and its joint
ventures and associates certain car parking lots and public areas
situated in commercial properties owned by the China SCE
Group and managed by the Group (the “Car Parking Lots and
Public Area Leasing”). The Master Car Parking Lots and Public
Area Leasing Agreement has a term commencing from the
Listing Date until 31 December 2023.

Under such arrangement, the Group will pay certain rental to
the China SCE Group which will constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Group, while the income
generated from end users, being independent third parties, will
not constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company.

The amount of rental to be paid by the Group under the Master
Car Parking Lots and Public Area Leasing Agreement shall be
determined on an arm’s length basis with reference to, among
others, (i) the prevailing market rental fee of the car parking lots
and public area situated in comparable locations and
comparable properties; (ii) the occupancy rate of car parking
lots leased by the Group from the China SCE Group; and (iii) the
number of the car parking lots and the GFA of the public area
leased.

The annual cap of the annual fee payable by the Group under
the Master Car Parking Lots and Public Area Leasing Agreement
for the year ended 31 December 2022 is RMB13.5 million, and
the actual transaction amount for the year ended 31 December
2022 was approximately RMB10.6 million.
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Carpark Sales Services

On 17 June 2021, the Company entered into a master carpark
sales services agreement (the “Master Carpark Sales Services
Agreement”) with China SCE Holdings, a controlling
shareholder, pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide
marketing and sales services for unsold car parking spaces of
the China SCE Group and its joint ventures and associates (the
“Carpark Sales Services”). The Master Carpark Sales Services
Agreement has a term commencing from the Listing Date until
31 December 2023.

A fee representing a fixed amount for each car parking space
sold with the support of the Carpark Sales Services shall be
charged for the Carpark Sales Services, which shall be
determined after arm’s length negotiations with reference to
the location, condition and salability of the relevant unsold car
parking spaces as well as the anticipated operational costs
including labor costs.

The annual cap of the annual fee payable by the China SCE
Group and its joint ventures and associates under the Master
Carpark Sales Services Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2022 is RMB46.5 million, and the actual transaction
amount for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately RMB18.3 million.

Commercial Property Management and
Operational Services

On 17 June 2021, the Company entered into a master
commercial property management and operational services
agreement (the “Master Commercial Property Management and
Operational Services Agreement”) with Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung,
a controlling shareholder, pursuant to which the Group agreed
to provide to Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung and his associates, mainly
including but not limited to the China SCE Group and its joint
ventures and associates, commercial property management and
operational services, including but not limited to (i) commercial
operational services at the pre-opening stage including (a)
market research and positioning, (b) advice on architectural
design and (c) tenant sourcing and opening preparation services,
and (ii) commercial operational and property management
services during the operation stage, such as tenant coaching,
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basic security and cleaning, repair and maintenance services for
tenants as well as marketing and promotion services, tenant
management and rent collection services (the “Commercial
Property Management and Operational Services”). The Master
Commercial Property Management and Operational Services
Agreement has a term commencing from the Listing Date until
31 December 2023.

The fees to be charged for the Commercial Property
Management and Operational Services shall be determined after
arm’s length negotiations with reference to (i) the size, location
and neighborhood profile of the commercial properties; (ii) the
scope of the services to be provided; (iii) the anticipated
operational costs (including but not limited to labor costs, cost
of materials and administrative costs); (iv) the rates generally
offered by the Group to independent third parties in respect of
comparable services; and (v) fees for similar services and types
of projects in the market.

The annual cap of the annual fee payable by Mr. Wong Chiu
Yeung and his associates under the Master Commercial Property
Management and Operational Services Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2022 is RMB522.2 million, and the actual
transaction amount for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately RMB71.0 million.

Residential Property Management Services

On 17 June 2021, the Company entered into a master
residential property management services agreement (the
“Master Residential Property Management Services
Agreement”) with China SCE Holdings, a controlling
shareholder, pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide to
the China SCE Group and its joint ventures and associates
residential property management services, including but not
limited to (i) property management services for unsold
residential properties units, (i) pre-delivery services including (a)
display units and property sales office management services,
and (b) cleaning, gardening and security services; and (iii) pre-
delivery inspection (the “Residential Property Management
Services”). The Master Residential Property Management
Services Agreement has a term commencing from the Listing
Date until 31 December 2023.
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The fees to be charged for the Residential Property Management
Services shall be determined after arm’s length negotiations
with reference to (i) the prevailing market price for the relevant
services (taking into account the location, size and condition of
the property, the scope of services and the anticipated
operational costs including but not limited to labor costs,
administrative costs and cost of materials); (ii) historical
transaction amounts; and (iii) the prices charged or would have
been charged by the Group for providing comparable services
to independent third parties.

The annual cap of the annual fee payable by the China SCE
Group and its joint ventures and associates under the Master
Residential Property Management Services Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2022 is RMB257.8 million, and the
actual transaction amount for the year ended 31 December
2022 was approximately RMB193.8 million.

CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the Master Car Parking Lots and
Public Area Leasing Agreement, the Master Carpark Sales Services
Agreement, the Master Commercial Property Management and
Operational Services Agreement and the Master Residential Property
Management Services Agreement as mentioned above (collectively
known as the “Agreements”), and confirmed the Agreements have
been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are

fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.
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CONFIRMATIONS FROM THE COMPANY'S
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Group has
engaged its auditor to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
“Assurance Engagements Other Than
and with
“Auditor’s Letter on

Engagements 3000 (Revised)
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
issued by the HKICPA. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the

Rules”

aforesaid continuing connected transactions conducted by the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and confirming that nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe the continuing
connected transactions disclosed in this report:

(@  have not been approved by the Board;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

() were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(d) have exceeded the relevant annual caps.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been delivered by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB1,800,443,000.
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CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
approximately RMB24,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the combined revenue
from the Group’s five largest customers accounted for 23.7% (2021:
37.6%) of the Group's total revenue and the revenue amount from
the Group’s single largest customer, the China SCE Group, accounted
for 21.8% (2021: 34.1%) of the Group’s total revenue. Other than
the China SCE Group, its joint ventures or associates and Wong
Family, the Group’s customers during the year ended 31 December
2022 were all independent third parties.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, combined purchases from the
Group'’s five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the
Group's total purchases.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the
Company) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Lun
Mr. Niu Wei
Mr. Sun Qiang
Mr. Zheng Quanlou
Ms. Ku Weihong

Non-executive Director
Mr. Huang Youquan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Ding Zuyu
Mr. Wang Yongping
Mr. Pang Hon Chung
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In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s articles of association,
at each annual general meeting, one third of the directors for the
time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one third) will retire from office
by rotation provided that every director shall be subject to retirement
at an annual general meeting at least once every three years. The
directors to retire in every year will be those who have been longest in
office since their last re-election or appointment but as between
persons who became or were last re-elected directors on the same
day those to retire will (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. There are no provisions relating to
retirement of directors upon reaching any age limit.

Mr. Wong Lun, Mr. Niu Wei and Mr. Huang Youquan will retire as
Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from all the three
independent non-executive Directors and as at the date of this report
still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 44 to 51 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Wong Lun, Mr. Niu Wei, Mr. Sun Qiang, Mr. Zheng
Quanlou and Ms. Ku Weihong, being executive Directors, has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 6 January 2021. Mr. Huang Youquan, being a non-
executive Director, has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 6 January 2021.
Each of their service contracts is renewable automatically upon the
expiry of the then current term of appointment, subject to termination
by either party giving not less than three months’ written notice.
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The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of Dr. Ding
Zuyu, Mr. Wang Yongping and Mr. Pang Hon Chung, being
independent non-executive Directors, for an initial term of three years
commencing from 10 June 2021, which is renewable automatically
thereafter and subject to termination by either party giving not less
than three months’ written notice and the retirement by rotation
requirement in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company and the Listing Rules.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee oversees the overall remuneration
policy and structure of the Group. The Group provides employees
with competitive remuneration and benefits. The remuneration policy
is reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance and
contribution of the employees and the industry remuneration level.

The authority of the Board to determine directors’ fees are subject to
shareholders’ approval at general meetings. The emoluments payable
to the Directors are determined by the Company’s Board with
reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and
the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the transactions set out in note 31 to the financial statements
and the transactions specified in the paragraphs headed “Connected
Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions” in this section,
no Director nor a connected entity of a director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, the holding company of the Company, or any of the
Company'’s subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party at the end

of the year or at any time during the Year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
report, there was or is permitted indemnity provision (within the
meaning in Section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company being in
force.

The Company has maintained directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover for certain
legal actions brought against its directors and officers arising out of
corporate activities.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code, are as follows:

(i) Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company
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Number of

Approximate
Percentage of

Name of Director Nature of Interest Ordinary Shares  Shareholding
EEHE ERME ZERHE Aotk
Mr. Niu Wei Interest in a controlled corporation 75,452,716 M 3.64%
HEEAE SR AE R
Mr. Sun Qiang Interest in a controlled corporation 20,120,724 @ 0.97%
R8T RIEFLEE R
Ms. Ku Weihong Interest in a controlled corporation 50,301,811 ® 2.42%
EETLt ZPEGEE R
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Notes:

1) These 75,452,716 Shares were registered in the name of Graceful
Solar Limited (“Graceful Solar”). Mr. Niu Wei held 100% of the issued
share capital of Graceful Solar and was deemed to be interested in
the 75,452,716 Shares held by Graceful Solar under the SFO.

2) These 20,120,724 Shares were registered in the name of Surplus Star
International Limited (“Surplus Star”). Mr. Sun Qiang held 100% of
the issued share capital of Surplus Star and was deemed to be
interested in the 20,120,724 Shares held by Surplus Star under the
SFO.

3) These 50,301,811 Shares were registered in the name of Golden Skill
Investments Limited (“Golden Skill”). Ms. Ku Weihong held 80% of
the issued share capital of Golden Skill and was deemed to be
interested in the 50,301,811 Shares held by Golden Skill under the
SFO.

(ii) Long Positions in the Share Options of
Associated Corporations

EEEWE

Wi

(1) 775,452,716 [RRGH AT B R AR ([ #
%) BEER - FEREERFERBENEZI
BEEBITIRA - BRI E S KA E G0
R EHA IS E 75,452,716 IRAZ(D °

(2) 720,120,724 fRAX 17D LAk 2 BIBR B IR A &)
(B2 BRERL - FREERBERERN
2EEBITIRA - Bl REES REE K
Bl R AR & 2458 120,120,724 R AR

,T/\ @

(3) 750,301,811 RAIXM A EREFR AT
([ ))ZEZT - BEHLLTHAELE
B180% B EITIRA - FILIREEF K
EEPIWR AEE S EFE B/ 50,301,811
RER&D ©

(i) REBEZERERENTR

Approximate

Name of Associated Number of Percentage of

Name of Director Corporation Nature of Interest Ordinary Shares Shareholding

BHEERZ Brgs

=L HEEE REME EERYE Ol

Mr. Zheng Quanlou China SCE Holdings Beneficial owner 30,000,000 0.71%
e i BRI AR §i/ 2SN (Note) (FffE)

Ms. Ku Weihong China SCE Holdings Beneficial owner 30,000,000 0.71%
BRIt Bk AR - §i/ 2SN (Note) (FffE)

Mr. Huang Youquan China SCE Holdings Beneficial owner 16,000,000 0.38%
HIELEE Bk PR - §i/ ZSUN (Note) (FffE)

Note: Such interests are in the form of share options of China SCE Holdings
which have not yet been exercised as at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the HR-_ZT-——#F+—-_HA=+—H ' &AL (XA
persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) in  FEEHHFBTHAEBRIN EARR FTIRHD &
the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the  }BRAIRMD B LEAR A D TR IEE %&Hﬁf

register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 & {715 336 1B F B A B a0 M AU 25 X & 1R
of the SFO are as follows: T :
Long positions: iy

Approximate

Number of Percentage of
Name Nature of Interest Ordinary Shares Shareholding
=18 ERMtE ZERHE #MOBRAEIL
Happy Scene Global Limited Beneficial owner 1,248,490,946 60.17%
("Happy Scene" )"
SEERFARRR([#£R])O EnEBA
Affluent Way International Limited Interest in a 1,248,490,946 60.17%
(" Affluent Way ") controlled corporation
HEEIRER AR ([#HEl)® R AR
China SCE Holdings" Interest in a 1,248,490,946 60.17%
controlled corporation
kgl QU R A B R
Newup Holdings Limited Interest in a 1,248,490,946 60.17%
(“Newup"”)? controlled corporation
MAERERAR (A @ R A E R
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung® Interest in a 1,248,490,946 60.17%
controlled corporation
=5HGEED R AR
SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

PREEERRBERARAR T EFR



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Notes:

1. Happy Scene is wholly owned and controlled by Affluent Way, which is in
turn wholly owned and controlled by China SCE Holdings. By virtue of the
SFO, Affluent Way and China SCE Holdings are deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Happy Scene.

2. China SCE Holdings is owned as to 39.31% by Newup, and 5.45% by each
of East Waves Investments Limited (“East Waves”) and Keen Century
Investments Limited (“Keen Century”). Each of Newup, East Waves and Keen
Century is wholly owned by Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung. By virtue of the SFO,
Newup and Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung are deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by China SCE Holdings.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person, other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company, whose interests
are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed "Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions In Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate granted to
any of the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children, nor
were there any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such

rights in any other body corporate.
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Connected Transaction
and Continuing Connected Transactions” above, no contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business between the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries nor contract of significance in relation to the
Group’s business whether or not for provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any

of its subsidiaries subsisted during or at the end of the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWS

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company, which
were not contract of service with any Director or any person engaged
in full time employment of the Company, were entered into or existed
during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares were held by the public as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report.

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

The Company does not have any other disclosure obligations under
Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THE GROUP’S
BUSINESS

Please refer to the section headed “Chairman’s Statement —
Outlook” for an indication of the likely future development in the
Group's business.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS' INFORMATION

There is no information required to be set out in this annual report
pursuant to the requirements under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWS

AUDITOR 12 E5RM

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as k@AM EBTEREERREBEAS R
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual {FARATZEED - € FEIRE —ERHEEZEHR

general meeting. ZEEHABARA RIZERED -

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD REREEE

Wong Lun =

Chairman ES

Hong Kong BB

30 March 2023 —E_=#=A=+H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B AR

EY::

To the shareholders of
SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SCE
Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 94
to 202, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of
SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For the matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B2 BEN RS

To the shareholders of
SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
BREETSE

BTREEESREERERAAZEERR
(REIESHETMA A BRAA])

FARETEIR (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMREETOMNEEERBRETER

Expected credit losses (“ECLs") of trade receivables

ESBWHR BRI EER ([FRREERR])

The Group has trade receivables mainly from the commercial
operational and property management services. The aggregate
carrying value of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2022
was approximately RMB181.8 million, net of provision for
impairment of approximately RMB5.0 million.

EEERAETERABEEL I METHRG 2B RN
H-R_ZE-_—_F+_A=+—H BZEKFEZZ:TE
HEANARKISI18HEE L IRBEREBEHARKS0RH

e

T% o

Significant estimation and judgement are required by
management to assess the ECLs for the trade receivables, with
reference to the groupings of various customer segments with
similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and service type)
and forecast economic conditions. To support management'’s
assessment of the ECLs, the Group engaged an external valuer
to perform assessment on the ECLs of the trade receivables at
the end of the reporting period.

EREFGEIRUWFACBREEEERTEFLEX G
KHE - W 2EBEBREXAUN TR ZTR 25 (AEFER &
RFHER) RBAKEERR - B EREFERMEES
B EREERBREHRZEBINBEEMRESBRFEZ
BHEERIREITAE o

The accounting policies and disclosures for the assessment of
the ECLs of the trade receivables are included in notes 2.4, 3
and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

B IRRFBZEREEERNEN ST EREEEE R
FEEARE M ERRME2.4 - 3% 19
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Our procedures included the assessment of the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls which govern the debt
collection and estimate of ECLs. We evaluated the
objectivity, independence and competency of the
valuer engaged by the Group. We also involved our
internal valuation specialists to assist us to assess the
methodologies and assumptions adopted including
both historical and forward-looking information in
the assessment for estimating the ECLs of the trade
receivables.

BN EFEETEERERERRREREEER
HEMNEERNIEFORT  BEehkEETENE
M- HAEFE BEEEBEFNM[BEMNZE
M BIEREEN o BFIMBERAFEEZERHE
BAFHEA AN TDEREBR  BREAUAFEES
R IR 2 TR EEBEABE AT IEER -

Annual Report 2022
R FFR



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of
SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZHE RS

To the shareholders of
SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of
SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZHE RS

To the shareholders of
SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of
SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Tsang Chiu Hang.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

30 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Hfs 2 HE N R

%/T\ g}(

Year ended 31 December 2022 %Zi: T —HE+ - A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-= B —F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AR®T T AREFTT
Revenue Yz 5 1,182,371 1,230,050
Cost of sales $HEE Al N (752,413) (649,181)
Gross profit ESVY 429,958 580,869
Other income and gains H 4 WA B ez 5 46,357 24,004
Selling and marketing expenses SHE R AE Y (1,032) (2,332)
Administrative expenses TR (194,745) (218,525)
Finance cost f75 5B 6 (372) (560)
Share of profit of a joint venture Bt —RaEhE R 18 271 180
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE AR R 7 280,437 383,636
Income tax expense FHIEM Y 10 (67,825) (97,507)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 212,612 286,129
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/  H 42 EU A~ (&18)
(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that e ESHNES S ES
may not be reclassified to profit or loss T‘Emﬁ’]ﬁ{miﬁﬂﬂlk/()ﬁﬂﬁ
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of R E N TR IE 5 =R
foreign operations 19,784 (37,206)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/  F£RE#2EKA (FE)
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 19,784 (37,206)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEREER B
FOR THE YEAR 232,396 248,923
Profit attributable to: THEIBREE T :
Owners of the parent SARHEAA 208,069 280,609
Non-controlling interests FEFERR ME 7 4,543 5,520
212,612 286,129
Total comprehensive income THRIBEELGEZERALERE :
attributable to:
Owners of the parent RARIEEA A 227,853 243,403
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR 4,543 5,520
232,396 248,923
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE A\ 5]&@ERRERBE A
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS SR EF
OF THE PARENT
RMBARY  RMBARK
Basic and diluted EARNEE 12 10.0 cents>  15.7 cents >

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

ﬂ‘

SRR

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AR¥T T AR®ET T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FIRBEE
Property and equipment I EYNE Lo 13 34,464 44,974
Investment properties WA 14 34 634
Goodwill Bz 16 748 748
Intangible asset EEE 17 653 906
Prepayments TEfFRIE 20 8,379 2,176
Amount due from a related party FE UL g B 5 T 31(a) 644,445 _
Investment in a joint venture B %A**ﬁé%m&éﬁ 18 1,926 1,655
Deferred tax assets RIETHIBE = 24 27,414 9,163
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 718,370 60,306
CURRENT ASSETS nEBEE
Trade receivables B 5 REWGIR 19 181,784 71,762
Prepayments, deposits and BRHIE - ZER

other receivables H b e IR 20 57,500 27,056
Pledged deposits EHEAER 21 1,000,000 =
Cash and cash equivalents He RKIBSZEEY 21 1,227,290 2,899,610
Total current assets mEEELE 2,466,574 2,998,428
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Trade payables B S ENFIE 22 75,058 76,800
Other payables and accruals HibErAZE R ETER 23 270,965 253,695
Amounts due to related parties FE SRS 5 =18 31(@) - 47,060
Contract liabilities SHEE 23 197,808 192,437
Tax payable FETFRIE 52,325 37,802
Total current liabilities mENE EEE 596,156 607,794
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 1,870,418 2,390,634
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBERE

LIABILITIES 2,588,788 2,450,940
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FnBAE
Lease liabilities HEEE 15 665 8,214
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIARE 24 163 226
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEEE 828 8,440
Net assets BERE 2,587,960 2,442,500

Annual Report 2022
—TFFER

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited

PHREEESRBERERAT

95



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2022 2021
—E-—F B
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

i AR®BTR ARBTE

EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BARHEE ABERES
of the parent

Issued capital BETRA 25 17,292 17,292

Reserves & 26 2,556,158 2,415,241
2,573,450 2,432,533

Non-controlling interests IR R 14,510 9,967

Total equity HEmAaTa 2,587,960 2,442,500

Wong Lun Niu Wei

=R 412

Director Director

FFE BE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

=
an

SERBBE

Year ended 31 December 2022 & E — T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAREEAEL
Share Statutory Non-
Issued  premium Capital Merger surplus  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
2R b3 &% & EEER EX RE k2R B
12 BER e e e Rt eyl &zt 4 @t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR¥TR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARET#R
(note 25) (note 26(b)) (note 26(a))
(W& 25) (MrEE26())  (Hizk26(a)
At 1 January 2022 W-ZE-—%¥-f-H 17292 1,887,379 460 13,716 23,17 (46,883) 537,452 2,432,533 9,967 2,442,500
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - 208,069 208,069 4,543 212,612
Other comprehensive income  EREMZERA :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BERINEBR
translation of foreign 3
operations - - - - - 19,784 - 19,784 - 19,784
Total comprehensive FREE
income for the year WA - - - - - 19,784 208,069 227,853 4543 23239
Transfer to statutory surplus ~ BEE AT RHEE
reserve - - - - 1,120 - (1,120) - - -
Share-based payment IR BEREA IR
expenses A% - 1,614 - - - - - 1,614 - 1,614
2021 final dividend —E-—ExHKRS - (88,550) - - - - - (88,550) - (88,550)
At 31 December 2022 W-E-ZF
+-A=1-H 17292 1,800,443* 460* 13,716* 24,237* (27,099)%  744,401% 2,573,450 14,510 2,587,960
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

== N\ 7/

/\%E%EJJ%%

2T

n‘/T\

Year ended 31 December 2022 &

Ft-A=t—BIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

ENZIN
Share Statutory Non-
lssued ~ premium Capital Merger surplus Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
BE#fT ) AR aff  EEER 33} *E FEERR B
e B 54 FefE B Ffe il et n @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETr ARETr ARETR ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETR
(note 25) (note 26(b))  (note 26(a))
(FzE25) (RiizE26(b) (3 26(a))

t 1 January 2021 W=E-—%-7—-8 7 175,627 - 65,306 15,533 (9,677) 274913 521,709 15,975 537,684
Profit for the year EREH - - = = = = 280,609 280,609 5520 286,129
Other comprehensiveloss ~ £RNEM2EER

for the year:

Exchange differences on BERINERR

translation of foreign ERES
operations - - - - - (37,206) - (37,206) - (37,206
Total comprehensive ERRE

income/(loss) for the year Yt A/ (B5i8) &% - - - - - (37,206) 280,609 243,403 5520 248923
Transfer to statutory surplus ~ BEZ % T Rt

reserve - - - - 7,584 - (7,584) - - -
Deemed distrbution tothe  B{EREREREEA

then equity owners fELAAIR

(notes 26(b) and 26(c) (Fitz£26(b) R 26(0)) - = - (50,000 = - (10486)  (60486)  (11,528) (72,014
Acquisition of a subsidiary KB~ R EREHI

under common control HEBAR

(note 25(b) (FiF25(0)) 3 1,587 - (1,590) - - - - - -
Issue of shares pursuant to the 1745 B2k 24T

Capitalsation Issue Bkl

(note 25(c) (FiF25(0) 12491 (12491) - - - - - - = =
Issue of shares pursuant to the REAE] EHEITRIR

Company's listing (FitzE25(e)

(note 25(e)) 4167 1,537,627 - - - - - 154179 - 1541,7%
Issue of shares pursuant to the RE{TERERRIE

evercise of the over-allotment %175

option (note 25(f)) (FitzE25() 624 230256 - = = = - 230880 - 230880
Share issue expenses BRHER - (4679 = = = = - (4679) - (4679
Deemed contribution from ~ BIEAKARHEEN

the China SCE Group B = = 460 = = = = 460 - 460
Share-based payment IR RERR

expenses E5R - 1,565 - - - - - 1,565 - 1,565
At 31 December 2021 W_E-—F

+-A=+-H 17292 1,887,379* 460* 13,716* 23,17 (46,883)*  537.452*% 2,432,533 9967 2,442,500
@ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZEFEREPENGEMBEIRARNGEFEE

RMB2,556,158,000 (2021:

statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

SEETRER

w3

Year ended 31 December 2022 & E — T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt & ARET T ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETDHERERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 75 BT V4 ) 280,437 383,636
Adjustments for: R
Finance cost B 5 & A 372 560
Interest income MEHA (32,882) (1,545)
Depreciation of property MERBETE
and equipment 7 13,198 6,449
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 7 4,437 4,617
Depreciation of investment properties KEENE 7 343 267
Amortisation of an intangible asset A R 7 253 253
Impairment of trade receivables B Z W IRRE 7 3,929 76
Impairment of amount due JE KT B ESE 75 SR IEDR (B
from a related party 7 4,731 -
Gain on disposal of items of property HEMERRHEEE
and equipment, net Wt 55E 5 7) (35)
Gain on termination of leases HEL W EE 5 (188) (37)
Share-based payment expenses PARS 7 22 ERE R SR 2 7 1,614 1,565
Share of profit of a joint venture B —KE &R 18 (271) (180)
275,966 395,626
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables B 5 e R IE R (3 hn) (113,951) 1,259
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERRIE -« Ze REM
deposits and other receivables e GRIBR A, (3 h0) (18,267) 490
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B 5 B, O ) (1,742) 26,415
Increase in other payables and accruals H At T RIE R ST B L N 18,933 72,334
Increase in contract liabilities BRI B BN 5,371 83,787
Cash generated from operations REELMEBIERES 166,310 579,911
Interest received B FIE 14,676 1,545
Interest paid ERTFLE (372) (560)
Income tax paid ERTATSH (71,616) (118,382)
Net cash flows from operating activities RS EENPTSIR e M EF 108,998 462,514
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
an\ IEI%/)“JE%

Year ended 31 December 2022 & E — T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
B aE ARMT T ARET T

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHFBRERE

ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property and BEMENMREEE

equipment (12,497) (27,467)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWHENFREER

property and equipment FT1S 708 721 1,015
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due JE U BE RS 5 IR > (32 n)

from related parties (649,176) 424,865
Increase in time deposits with original REIBIHZR =A<

maturity over three months TE BT SR AN (962,500) -
Increase in pledged time deposits B E B F g (1,000,000) =
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing & EREHE(FTE)

activities REMEFHE (2,623,452) 398,413
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHAERERE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT FTIS FIE - 1,772,674
Share issue expenses EIRNER - (46,792)
Deemed distribution to the then %ﬂﬂzﬁ”‘ﬂﬂg =mEEA A

equity owners {EH 5 Ik - (51,568)
Decrease in amounts due to related parties  J&{~f BAE 75 FIEE 2 (47,060) (56,651)
Principal portion of lease payments XANHEREHS (4,366) (4,297)
Dividend paid B E (88,550) (43,542)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing mE RS, (FrA)

activities REMEFHE (139,976) 1,569,824
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReRASEEY

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #hnCRd) T (2,654,430) 2,430,751
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNEEREEEED

of year 2,899,610 503,944
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, b = F B R B FRR

net 19,610 (35,085)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERRERFLZEY

END OF YEAR 264,790 2,899,610
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReRASEEYEHRIN

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in A BB KT Z

the consolidated statement of RENRESEEY

financial position 21 1,227,290 2,899,610
Less: Non-pledged time deposits o BARZIEE

with original maturity over L= B 2 REEHE A

three months when acquired TE HAfF 3K (962,500) =
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the 4RSI EMEBRATH

consolidated statement of cash flows Re MRS EEY 264,790 2,899,610
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NOTES TO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 20 August 2019. The registered office
address of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
addresses of the principal place of business of the Company in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong are
5/F, SCE Tower, No. 2, Lane 1688, Shenchang Road, Honggiao
Business District, Shanghai, China and Room 2801, Hysan Place,
500 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, respectively.
The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 2 July 2021 (the “Listing Date”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) were involved in the provision of property
management services and commercial operational services in
the PRC during the year.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, Happy Scene
Global Limited (“Happy Scene”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"”), is the immediate holding
company of the Company, and China SCE Group Holdings
Limited (together with its subsidiaries but excluding the Group,
the “China SCE Group"”), a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and whose shares are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, is the controlling shareholder of the
Company.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 1. EER @)
Information about subsidiaries EBEMME A TRNER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 ARFZEZTEMBARR - -
December 2022 are as follows: +—A=+—HBZFHB@AT :
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration registered attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
B/ ZEf K BR1T
A% e LER/EMBA RARAEERETIN TEEER
Direct Indirect
HE M
Lofty Idea Enterprises Limited BVI Us$100 100% - Investment holding
RECEERAF EBRAES 100%7T REER
Shine Sino Limited BVI Us$100 100% - Investment holding
BEERRA HEBENES 100%7T REER
First Bright Management Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% Investment holding
BEEEFRAR Bk 1007%87T REER
Superior Management Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% Investment holding
hEEREBR AT Bk 1007%87T REZR
Nan‘an Meilin China SCE Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd *#
HRANPRREERERAR HE /B, AR 5,000,0007T VES
Shanghai China SCE Hongshen PRC/Mainland China RMB 10,000,000 - 100%  Property management
Commercial Management Co., Ltd **
DEPRIREEERRBERAT Y HE/ FER AR¥ 10,000,000 70 nEER
Xiamen China SCE Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd
(“Xiamen China SCE") *#
EMTREEERERAR hE/HE R AR 100,000,000 7 NEER

(TRPIREED) *
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2k B

31 December 2022 —ZE - —F+ - f=+—H
EER @)

FRKNBARNER (@)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

ARRIZEEMBARR T -

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2022 are as follows: (Continued)

TZA=1T—BZ#FBWT : (&)

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration registered attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
R/ R B#T
a8 X ZER/ERRA AADEERERSL  FEER
Direct Indirect
=k Gk
Quanzhou Taicheng Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 100%  Property management
Property Management Co., Ltd **
FNEHEENEEBERRF HE/ B, ARH 10,000,000 70 mEER
Beijing World City Property PRC/Mainland China RIMB50,000,000 — 100%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd
("Beijing World City") **
ERERBDEERERAR hE/HERL AR # 50,000,000 7T NEER
(TER R ) =
Quanzhou World City Property PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 58%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd
("QZ World City") **
FMNERIDFERERAF) hE/ R, AK#10,000,000 7T NEER
(TR ]) =
Xiamen Cippon Tai Wo Property PRC/Mainland China HK$1,500,000 = 100%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd A*
("Xiamen Cippon Tai Wo") A*
BRIt AR EERERAF HE/HE N, 1,500,000/ 7T MEER
(TEFItE F =M 1)
Fujian Cippon Tai Wo Property PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 100%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd *#
RRUBRNNEERERAF HE/EAL, AR¥ 10,000,000 70 mEER
Cippon Tai Wo (Shanghai) Property PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 — 100%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd
("Cippon Tai Wo (Shanghai)”) **
HHRM (LB DEERERAR hE/HERL AR 5,000,000 70 NEER

(MEF=MN (7))
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR M AL

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 1. EER @)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) EBEMNELATIRNER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 ARFZEZTEMBARR - -
December 2022 are as follows: (Continued) +-_A=+—B2Z=HEBWT : (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration registered attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
B/ FEf K BR1T
£ X ZER/ERRE AAREGREEIL FEEER
Direct Indirect
Ef M
Shanggiu Anshu Property PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 — 100%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd *#
BEMRENEERERAF HE/ B, ARH500,0007C NEER
Shanghai China SCE Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB12,200,000 — 100%  Commercial operational
Management Co., Ltd services
("Shanghai China SCE") A*
BT REEERERAR hE/HERL AR#12,200,000 7T EERERG
(T b))
* Registered as domestic limited liability companies under PRC law. * RIERBEEESIMARANEGRE AR

Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law.

& The English names of these companies represent the best effort made
by management of the Company to directly translate their Chinese

names as they did not register any official English name.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in

the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for

the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the

Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (“RMB’000"”) except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries now comprising
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).
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31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H
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RAMBRRAIEANR R REIBRFARK
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(©)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
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2.1

2.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
2021

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 16
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual
Framework”) issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to
HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine
what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that
would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a
business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should
refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead
of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify
for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to business
combinations that occurred on or after 1 January 2022.
As there were no business combinations during the year,
the amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect
not to apply lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly, the
practical expedient applies to rent concessions for which
any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided the
other conditions for applying the practical expedient are
met. The Group has adopted the amendment on 1
January 2022. However, the Group did not received any
COVID-19-related rent concessions and therefore the
amendment did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of
those items as determined by HKAS 2 Inventories, in profit
or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment
made available for use on or after 1 January 2021. Since
there was no sale of items produced prior to the property,
plant and equipment being available for use, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(d)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
that contract (e.g.,
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative costs

an allocation of the depreciation

do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under
the contract. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled
all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and no onerous
contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are applicable to the Group are as
follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the terms
of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid
or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. The Group
has applied the amendment prospectively from 1
January 2022. As there was no modification or
exchange of the Group’s financial liabilities during
the year, the amendment did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the
Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 R A Y Rt

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23 EEMEBRRERZEEY
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 7 4 2 S |

AEBU RNZERHERERPERMBAT
B MR R ARER R REIERTEE

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

Transaction’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the
2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a consequence of the 2020
Amendments and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was
revised to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for
annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the
classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial
application of HKFRS 17

financial statements. B TR AR HER| o
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between EARNBREENSE0%R KEEZALRL AT
HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint % ﬁé & -HER|E 8% RELERMAE
Venture? (Z3—4%)(B3T%) HEGFE
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback? %ﬂ’éﬁﬁ%%/ﬁﬂ 165 ERHEmEERR
(E31%)
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts' ERUBREENS 175 ’EAA
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'® ERIBREENFE 175 i A
(31)
Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and EARRGLER S 175 TR BRI R L&l
HKFRS 9 — Comparative CHEY FI7HEREBIERS
Information® ERZE9F — [ BERS
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or BBeENFE 1% BERE “*5/%5/7 BE k]
Non-current (the “2020 (B3TK) ([ZE-FF5TE 2
Amendments”*
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants RO EAFE15 WEZZNEREE R
(the “2022 Amendments”)? (fBaTK) ([ZE=ZF54))
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies' ARG ERZ 1%L SHHFRE
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 BAYEREER
ERREE 2% (B3R
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates' BAGTHERESR(BIIR) St EitHES!
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and B erE IE 125 (B]R) HE-LZELHEZER
Liabilities arising from a Single BERANELHE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR M AL

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale
and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not
recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the
right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16
(i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group'’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current clarify the requirement for classifying liabilities as
current or non-current, in particular the determination over
whether an entity has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities
for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Classification
of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued the 2022
Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants of a
liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with which
an entity must comply on or before the reporting date affect
the classification of that liability as current or non-current. In
addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional disclosures
by an entity that classifies liabilities arising from loan
arrangements as non-current when it has a right to defer
settlement of those liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months after the
reporting period. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An entity
that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to apply
simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments and
whether existing loan agreements may require revision. Based
on a preliminary assessment, the amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments
to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance
on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the
amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The
Group is currently revisiting the accounting policy disclosures to
ensure consistency with the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Annual Report 2022
—TFFER

BAEE SRR M AL

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.3 EREMERARER ZEEHM

&R £ ()

[ == R VAN

BRGHEAF 1R EFTAN) KK
KEEXRERBEAEEZQHARRE
£ MIERBERSFHER - MR
BN EERMBERERMAEMER 6
ZREE FAREAEBHAZE KRR
BHREANTEEAEENZEMBREK
FHARE  AIRFENBER - BE
M mEENEHBERE 2% (ERIAX)
LA EE SRS EBRN G BERR
BIRHIrR IR - ARG ERE
WUBFTARIR=_Z=_=F—A—H%Z
BREOFERABMEN LHFRFRE
- ARBAYBHRELENEHZRE2
S (ERTA) PRt 2 45 51 A IE R 1
WEAREBETREERAY - AE
BRI EEH WA ST BRIE - AW
REBZFER]

BFRGHEAFHR(EFTA)EE &5
B EHESABRESH 2HO TR -
BEIHENERE RV B RRAFANE
THREUENER S -  ZFERNES
ERESFL e A MM ERGES
ERBABIE - ZFEIIR_FT_=F
—RA—BRZRFARNFEREER
EARNZARRAAR R EENERK
REPRETHAZLE TARERE
R - BHZFETHARENTHHRE
W EEREATE -

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited

PHREEESRBERERAT

113



114

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that
date. In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively
to transactions other than leases and decommissioning
obligations. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investment in a joint venture is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investment in a joint venture (Continued)

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of a joint venture is included in profit or
loss. In addition, when there has been a change recognised
directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its joint
venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment
in the joint venture, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of the joint venture is included as
part of the Group’s investment in the joint venture.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations other than those under
common control and goodwill

Business combinations other than those under common control
are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations other than those under
common control and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of
the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 E A2 EEE )
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued) NAREFTEE)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or R GEHRERPAEIEBEAALENNE

disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the BENBE HREBEHALET=EE

fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest mEBEANNIERRIE ASEE T

level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a AREBHRNETHE

whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active EF—EH — ENHEREESEGER
markets for identical assets or liabilities VR 5 R RIE (R

%)

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the FESR — EREAAREREMS
lowest level input that is significant to the fair BEANTHEE(EiEL
value measurement is observable, either A &R A SR
directly or indirectly BB A

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the EF=EBH — ERHEAAEFEMS
lowest level input that is significant to the fair BERHNABREE
value measurement is unobservable B Rl a A BURAEES

A

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial MIEREHEENIEREPERZNEE

statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether LEEMmMS  AEENKSRESHEER

transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by RFesfalEoERE(EREEEAL

reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that BEXEmM=BEANSEE @ A

is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the B NEFTERESGCREERZME

end of each of the reporting period. Ao
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than deferred
tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to
the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Property and equipment and depreciation

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in
the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

20% to 33%
20% to 33%

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are leasehold interests in properties held
by the Group as a lessee to earn rental income, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation on investment properties is provided to write off
the cost of the properties over the shorter of the estimated
useful lives and the lease terms of 3 years using the straight-line
method.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible asset (other than goodwiill)

Intangible asset acquired separately is measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of an intangible asset acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful life of an intangible asset is assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. An intangible asset with a finite life is
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an intangible asset
recognised in profit or loss in the period is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant intangible asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible asset (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Customer relationship

Customer relationship acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The customer
relationship has a finite useful life and is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the expected useful life, taking into
account the prior experience of the renewal pattern of property
management contracts, which is 5 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets, included in
“property and equipment” or “investment properties” line
items on the face of the statement of financial position,
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

@)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful life of the underlying assets.
Buildings 3 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property, it is included in investment
properties. The corresponding right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost, and subsequently measured at cost
model, in accordance with the Group’s policy for
“investment properties”.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group's current portion of lease liabilities is included
in other payables and accruals whereas the non-current
portion of lease liabilities is separately disclosed in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c)  Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office and staff
quarters (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor (Continued)

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of underlying assets to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is
classified as a finance lease or operating lease with reference to
the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. If the head
lease is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the on-
balance sheet recognition exemption, the Group classifies the
sublease as an operating lease.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are all classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group'’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to

impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next 12
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 —  Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage2 —  Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 —  Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXE:THEME &)

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, amounts due
to related parties and lease liabilities.

After initial recognition, they are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
each of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in
the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Property management services

The Group charges property management fees in respect of the
property management services on a lump sum basis.

On a lump sum basis, the Group is entitled to retain the full
amount of received property management fees. From the
property management fees, the Group shall bear expenses
associated with, among others, staff, cleaning, garbage
disposal, gardening and landscaping, security and general
overheads covering the common areas. During the term of the
contract, if the amount of property management fees the
Group collected is not sufficient to cover all the expenses
incurred, the Group is not entitled to request the property
owners to pay the shortfall.

Accordingly, on a lump sum basis, the Group recognises
revenue as the full amount of property management fees the
Group charged the property owners and property developers.

These services are performed by an indeterminate number of
acts over a specified period of time. Accordingly, revenue is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the specified period
unless there is evidence that some other methods better
represents the stage of completion, and the cost of services is
recognised as incurred in connection with performing such
services.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 R A Y Rt

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 E A2 EEE )
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued) W R (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EEEHW=E (&)

Value-added services to non-property owners FEXE F 1B IR

Value-added services to non-property owners mainly include FEETHEREETESIEI MR
pre-delivery inspection services, pre-sale management services, BRIEEEERY - MEERIREEN
such as cleaning, security and maintenance services for pre-sale LEBERNBZ TRERERE - A
display units and sales offices, and marketing and sales services R N HE ARTS - AREHEIEEE
to promote sales of car parking spaces owned by non-property BEENEEAMN - KEMIEXE IR S H
owners. Revenue from provision of value-added services to non- T2 88 6 AR 7S LA SN 12 (B IR 75 1O Uk 25 T 3t
property owners other than the marketing and sales services is EERAEESZER  REARFR
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line basis REB I RS BT REA T

because the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group.

In respect of provision of marketing and sales services to ERMEERIEERBACEIEEEE
promote sales of car parking spaces owned by non-property ENEBEMEE @ AEBYHEARE
owners, the Group charged a fixed service fee for each car BEEMEERENYFETEELHAE
parking space sold with the support of the Group’s marketing B WEEFERRBEE - R Rtk
and sales services. Revenue is recognised at the point in time R EEER  BNIEE T BEEMAE
when the services are rendered which is the time when the non- ETEREHREEE -

property owners transfer the car parking spaces to their

customers.
Community value-added services Ft [ IEE AR
Community value-added services mainly include daily value- HEEEREETEFEREET MERIE
added services provided to property owners and residents. T A BIRERK - &% ERSKE
Revenue from community value-added services is recognised EHERGREBRZFRIBESI T
when the related services are rendered and the customer RNE B TR R F ZRAFFER o
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Community value-added services (Continued)

Community value-added services also include residential
property agency services provided to individual customers by
referring them to residential units owned by property developers
based on their specific requirements, assisting them to negotiate
for a favourable price and providing them with relevant
administrative services. Revenue from residential property
agency services is recognised at the point in time when the
services are rendered which is the time when the property
developers transfer the control of the residential units to the
customers.

Commercial operational services

The Group enters into commercial operational service contracts
with property developers or owners of office buildings and
shopping malls, pursuant to which the Group provides the
following services:

o market research and positioning, providing advice on
design, tenant sourcing and opening preparation services
to property owners during the preparation stage;

o commercial operational services during the operation
stage, including tenant management and rental collection
services; and

o on-going advisory services to provide guidance on
development and implementation of business operational
policies, including tenancy and brand portfolio
management, pricing policies, optimisation of business
processes and establishing service standards and staff
functionality and code of conducts.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Commercial operational services (Continued)

Revenue in respect of the provision of market research and
positioning services, providing advice on design, tenant sourcing
and opening preparation services was recognised at the point in
time when services have been provided and the Group has a
present right to payment for the services.

For commercial operational services during the operational
stage, the Group charges a service fee for business tenant
management and rent collection according to the terms in the
relevant contracts, which is generally a certain proportion of the
monthly rent and the revenue is recognised over time in the
period in which the services are rendered.

In respect of on-going advisory services to provide guidance on
development and implementation of business operational
policies, revenue is recognised when the related services are
rendered and the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Other income
Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis, using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract, (i.e., transfers control of the related goods
or services to the customer).

Share-based payments

The Group has offered restricted share awards for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services in exchange for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. Further details of which are given in
note 27 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.
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31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme. Where employees
leave the scheme prior to the full vesting of the employer’s
contributions, the amount of forfeited contributions cannot be
used to reduce the contributions payable by the Group.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme (the “Pension Scheme”) operated by the local municipal
government, which is a defined contribution scheme. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentages of
their payroll costs to the Pension Scheme. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the Pension Scheme is to pay the
ongoing contributions under the Pension Scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they have been
approved by the equity holders of relevant entities comprising
the Group in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the memorandum and articles of association of relevant
entities comprising the Group grant their directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed
and declared.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

Items included in the financial information of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates, i.e., the
functional currency. These financial statements are presented in
RMB while the Company'’s functional currency is Hong Kong
dollars. In the opinion of the Company’s directors, as the
Group's operations are mainly in the PRC, the use of RMB as
the presentation currency is more appropriate for the
presentation of the Group's results and financial position.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
prevailing at the end of each of the financial periods. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of the Company and certain
subsidiaries operating outside the PRC are currencies other than
RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated into RMB at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of the Company and certain subsidiaries
operating outside the PRC are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of Hong Kong entities which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)
Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are disclosed below:

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC. As a
result of the fact that certain matters relating to the income
taxes have not been confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective
estimates and judgements based on currently enacted tax laws,
regulations and other related policies are required in
determining the provision for income taxes to be made. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact on the
income tax and tax provisions in the period in which the
differences realise.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., customer type and service type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group'’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 19 to the financial
statements.
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31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of property
management services, value-added services and commercial
operational services. Information reported to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker, for the purpose of resource allocation
and performance assessment, focuses on the operating results
of the Group as a whole as the Group's resources are integrated
and no discrete operating segment information is available.
Accordingly, no operating segment information is presented.

Geographical information

No geographical information is presented as the Group's
revenue from the external customers is derived solely from its
operations in Mainland China for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 and the non-current assets of the Group were
substantially located in the PRC as at 31 December 2022 and
2021.

Information about major customers

Revenue from the China SCE Group contributed 22% (2021:
34%) of the Group’s revenue during the year. Other than the
revenue from the China SCE Group, no revenue derived from
sales to a single customer or a group of customers under
common control accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue during the year (2021: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 R A Y Rt

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows:

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

5. W& - At A RS

4

REBWKE ST -

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%ET T ARETIT
Types of goods or services Ems R ER

Revenue from contracts with customers Y I=EY=F -0l &
Property management services Y& 1 RS 771,836 601,087
Value-added services 1% (F AR 7 365,491 342,464
Commercial operational services B ES RS 45,044 286,499
1,182,371 1,230,050

(a) Disaggregated revenue information:

Year ended 31 December 2022

(a) WIEDIHEH :

—E-——F+-—H=+—HILEE

Property Commercial
management Value-added operational
services services services Total
MEERE BEEE
PR #% BERE R 7% st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR%ETn ARETn AR%ETxn
Timing of revenue recognition Uiz5 8 32 fB RS
Services transferred over time R EREER R 771,836 329,662 2,357 1,103,855
Services transferred at a point NE R
in time EENRSG - 35,829 42,687 78,516
Total revenue from contracts XPERRGER
with customers 771,836 365,491 45,044 1,182,371
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

(Continued)

(a) Disaggregated revenue information:
(Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

N

4

Wz~ A R ES )

() EmDIFESR : (#0)

—E--F+-A=+-ALEE

Property Commercial
management  Value-added  operational
services services services Total
MEERE EEEE
AR5 118 AR 7% R Rt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AR%®TR ARET:R
Timing of revenue recognition {57852 A0 KR
Services transferred over time R EREEAN R 601,087 295,414 14,079 910,580
Services transferred at a point R — 2
in time R RS - 47,050 272,420 319,470
Total revenue from contracts EPARWEAE
with customers 601,087 342,464 286,499 1,230,050

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

TRETINAREHER AN HRE
HIEF ARNABN KRS S -

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT AREBTT

Revenue recognised that was included ~ RIREEIFIE AA DB ED

in contract liabilities at beginning B RS
of the reporting period

192,437 108,650

Value-added services include residential property agency
services provided by the Group to individual customers by
referring the customers to residential units owned by
property developers and providing them with price
negotiation assistance and administrative services. The
Group charged the customers at mutually agreed service
fees. During the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, the property agency services income earned was
related to residential units sold by the China SCE Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 R A Y Rt

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

5. W& - At A RS

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(Continued)

(b) Performance obligations

(b) BREE

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Property management services and value-added
services

The Group recognises revenue in the amount that equals
to the right to invoice which correspond directly with the
value of performance completed. The Group has applied
the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 to its revenue from
property management contracts for not to disclose the
remaining performance obligations under the Group’s
existing contracts as these contracts do not have a fixed
term.

Commercial operational services

The Group recognises revenue in the amount that equals
to the rights to invoices which corresponds directly with
the value to the customers of the Group’s performance to
date. The amounts of unsatisfied performance obligations
are expected to be recognised in one to four years as at
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

The amount of transaction prices for commercial
operational services allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at the end of the year are as follows:

BRAREEBAR TR E R L0
T

V3% E B R R B AR

ANEEREE R B ZHEFN
SREERNG BREENHEE R
KEANEEBEERER - A5ER
BB FEREENEISRAT
TEEFAEARYEEEANN
ek BRZEEHNLTEETEF
B U EREASEREGE40E
THRIBELOET

BREER%

ANEEIZBEE RN RN
cREERNGD AR EAS
l cSIEBHNEFEBEEZE
BeHE_T-_—_F+_H="1—
Ak=—ZE=—F+=A=+—H "
AEBTHRBAE TR —EMF

AR o

RERDPETHTROEE(RE
T EB D RIETT) 7 25 5&E 2 IR 75

RSEIESTELT ¢
2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Amounts expected to be recognised TEEfER AW £
as revenue:
Within one year —&FR 75,613 82,916
After one year —F1& 128,538 192,689
204,151 275,605
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P EE

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

(Continued)

Other income and gains

An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains is as follows:

4

HA WA R W

Wa ~ B A R s )

REBEEMPARKEOIHFTT

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET ARETIT
Bank interest income HRITH EWA 32,882 1,545

Gain on disposal of items of property HE Y N AR ETE B WS R 58
and equipment, net 7 B5
Forfeiture income on deposits received BRI A 1,091 1,436
Government grants BT B 9,125 4,295
Foreign exchange gain, net b 5 W s 5 58 1,926 15,884
Gain on termination of leases TSR WS 188 37
Others Hip 1,138 772
46,357 24,004

6. FINANCE COST 6. HMIEM

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T ARBT T
Interests on lease liabilities (note 15(c)) HEA GRS (M3 15() 372 560

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 R A Y Rt

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRERD& A
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBBRE DSR2 (GEA) T
(crediting): XIE
2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt =E AR%T R ARETTT
Cost of services provided* B R AR RS * 752,413 649,181
Depreciation of property and L EY
equipment 13 13,198 6,449
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 13, 15(c) 4,437 4,617
Depreciation of investment RE Y EITE <+
properties** 14 343 267
Amortisation of an intangible asset A 17 253 253
Gain on disposal of property and HEMEREZER
equipment, net W 5 ’E 7) (35)
Gain on termination of leases HEL WS 15(c) (188) (37)
Share issue expenses ZEITRNER - 21,068
Lease payments not included in the Rt AHEEEFEN
measurement of lease liabilities FHEMR 15(c) 11,185 8,176
Auditor’s remuneration Z A B & 1,900 1,900

Employee benefit expense (including EERIAY (BEES

directors’ remuneration (note 8)): N (FIEES)) -
Salaries, bonuses and benefits in kind ~ #% - FEAL R EWIER 471,359 452,938
Share-based payment expenses LARR 7 AR ERE R T 3 2 1,614 1,565
Pension scheme contributions BIREFT B 100,822 74,868
573,795 529,371
Impairment of trade receivables B W IERE 19 3,929 76
Impairment of amount due JE K B ESE 75 FRIEDR(E
from a related party 31(a) 4,731 -

Foreign exchange gain, net FE H U %5 F %8 (1,926) (15,884)

2 Cost of services provided included an aggregate amount of * EREBRBORAEBERFANESHE
RMB445,023,000 (2021: RMB397,827,000) which comprised AR¥ 445,023,000 T(ZF=—F : AR
employee benefit expense, depreciation of investment properties and #397,827,0007T) AEEBRFFAS « 18E
lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities MEFERKRFACBALRARXRGEE
during the year. These amounts comprised the respective expense BEFENHEENKE -ZESHEE L
items disclosed above. XA ERRABRAR X 1B B -

**  The depreciation of investment properties amounting to RMB343,000 **  ARM343,000(ZZT=—F : AR
(2021: RMB267,000) was included in the cost of services provided 267,000 7T) IR B M ETE Thst ARFR
during the year. ERERGHIKA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

8.

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION

On 6 January 2021, Mr. Wong Lun was re-designated as an
executive director and the chairman of the Company; Mr. Niu
Wei was appointed as an executive director and the chief
executive officer of the Company; Mr. Sun Qiang was appointed
as an executive director and the vice president of the Company;
Mr. Zheng Quanlou and Ms. Ku Weihong were appointed as
executive directors of the Company; and Mr. Huang Youquan
was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as

\

o)

R-F_—F—ARB EfRLLEER
ERARBRNTESTRIE  FREE
EZERARBNTESRERNTE
RRELBRZER/ARAMITESERE
R HEEREREFALTERE
REARABINITES : AREBMIELERE
RERBRRBIFERITES -

RIEEHRR - BB R F B 383(1)
@ b)) OROEARABD(REES
MEEER) ROIE 2 B0 HEHE =
w

follows:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Fees wE 771 417
Other emoluments: EEH <
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e AL NREYET 4,928 4,780
Discretionary bonuses EIEIEAL 1,796 2,088
Pension scheme contributions BIRS B 325 376
Share-based payment expenses (note) LARD B ERE RN R
(HF=%) 1,604 1,556
9,424 9,217

Note: Share-based payment expenses were related to the restricted shares
issued and granted to certain directors and employees of the
Company on 2 March 2020, further details of this transaction are set
out in note 27.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 R A Y Rt

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEH M
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BUFHITES
On 10 June 2021, Dr. Ding Zuyu, Mr. Wang Yongping R-ZE-_—FA+HTHEE
and Mr. Pang Hon Chung were appointed as independent T FkFEAERTELELES
non-executive directors of the Company. EERRRBILIENITES -
Salaries,
allowances Pension  Share-based
and benefits Discretionary scheme payment Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions expenses remuneration
Fe 2R BiheitE URORER
ik BENEHN Mg #3 HAREX ymes

RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARMTR

2022 —E-CE
Independent non-executive  BUIEHTES :
directors:
Dr. Ding Zuyu THERT 257 - - - - 257
Mr. Wang Yongping ExFErsE 257 - - - - 257
Mr. Pang Hon Chung YELLE 257 - - - - 257
m - - - - m
2021 —EC-&
Independent non-executive BV IEHITES
directors:
Dr. Ding Zuyu THEEL 139 - - - - 139
Mr. Wang Yongping IkTRE 139 - - - - 139
Mr. Pang Hon Chung TERRE 139 - - - - 139
417 - - - - 417
Annual Report 2022 SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited 157
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEFHM
(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) HITEERFHITES
directors
Salaries,

allowances Pension  Share-based
and benefits  Discretionary scheme payment Total
in kind bonuses  contributions expenses  remuneration

F& - BUR BAReiE  NRGAER
BUERN BERA HE HEREX ymes
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

2022 —E-CE
Executive directors: nTEZ
Mr. Wong Lun amEE - - - 60 60
Mr. Niu Wei Afgih 1,232 513 50 908 2,703
Mr. Sun Qiang RakiE 1,232 257 143 pLY) 1,874
Mr. Zheng Quanlou HRERE 1,232 513 65 61 1,871
Ms. Ku Weihong BT 1,232 513 67 m 2,084
4,928 1,796 325 1,543 8,592
Non-executive director: FRTES:
Mr. Huang Youguan BWELA - - - 61 61
4,928 1,796 325 1,604 8,653
2021 “E--F
Executive directors: nTEE:
Mr. Wong Lun amEE - - - 59 59
Mr. Niu Wej HEkh 1,195 605 64 880 2,744
Mr. Sun Qiang Farst 1,195 361 139 235 1,930
Mr. Zheng Quanlou HRERE 1,195 270 116 59 1,640
Ms. Ku Weihong BRIt 1,195 852 57 264 2,368
4,780 2,088 376 1,497 8,741
Non-executive director: FRTES:
Mr. Huang Youguan BWRELA - - - 59 59
4,780 2,088 376 1,556 8,800
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or RER  HEEERERFEBERELM
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2021: Nil). MM THE( B —F &) o
158 SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2021: four) directors, respectively, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration of the remaining highest paid non-director
employee during the year are as follows:

BAEE SRR M AL

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H
AR E=EHMNEES

RERN > A= FMER D HIEHEMN
FEE(CT-_—F:0%) BRENFH
R IE BN TS MRS - MFA - £7
TEREHMIFESRENFIFBENOT -

2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind %4 - 28 R EWiEF 1,350 964
Discretionary bonuses IS FEAL - 840
Pension scheme contributions RIRBE IR 81 75

1,431 1,879

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

FHEATHEANNIEESR= 5 HE
BAZMT :

2022 2021
—E-—F B

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 T = 2,000,000 7% 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 #7TZ 2,500,000 47T - 1
1 1
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR M AL

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

10. INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which the
Group's subsidiaries are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the
rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the BVI, the
entities within the Group incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and the BVI are not subject to any income tax. No provision for
Hong Kong profits tax has been made during the year as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2021: Nil).

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China are
subject to the PRC corporate income tax (“CIT"”) at a rate of
25% for the years. Certain subsidiaries of the Group in
Mainland China satisfied the Inclusive Tax Deduction and
Exemption Policies for Micro and Small Enterprises. For a small
low-profit enterprise, the portion of annual taxable income
which does not exceed RMB1,000,000 shall be calculated at a
reduced rate of 12.5% as taxable income and be subject to CIT
at a rate of 20%. The portion over RMB1,000,000 but not
exceeding RMB3,000,000 shall be calculated at a reduced rate
of 25% as taxable income and be subject to CIT at a rate of
20%.

10. BRI

AEEAERAEENE QR T REE
FRAERL T Bl AR [ & A 30R B H A s 7
RERBEEHMNAET - BEFRSHS
REBEZHSHAARER  ~&H
RASHES R EBEXES MK
ERDEASMRTMAAGBHE - FALEST
REBFESHEE BRAEAEENZSF
R ER BB EE T ERBEF o (=
T —F  &|)

FRAEBERFE AN IE LK B A A
THiR25% M KM E B ERBH
(TRZEFEH])  REBRFRE A
HETHBERARFE/NMIEELTEMER
WRBR - st/ BRI EmS - FE
JERBIFTISRE T BB A K% 1,000,000 7T
RIEBS  BIR12.5% T ATERFLATIS5E
WiE20% KB R BN RS T - B8
A K % 1,000,0007C 18 T~ 8 8 A R #
3,000,000 89 #B 5 + & 25% 5T A FE
REATEE - WIK20% M REME %
FRiSHt o

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFIT
Current charge for the year: FAENEARAR -

PRC corporate income tax R FFTER 86,791 99,256

Over-provision in prior year: BEFEBRBEEE
Mainland China Fh 5] A 3 (652) -
86,139 99,256
Deferred (note 24) IRE (MH7E24) (18,314) (1,749)
Total tax charge for the year FRRIBR T L5 67,825 97,507
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and most of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the

BAEE SRR M AL

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H
10. MIBF X ()

N/NCIVS NPl = PNCIE il Jie e
ERERIZATE B R 5T B ROBR B AT A B @
PR IRR X B BRH R EOHRIA

income tax expense at the effective income tax rate is as B S BR IO T ¢
follows:
2022 2021
—g-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Profit before tax P& T A1 Y ) 280,437 383,636
Tax charge at the PRC statutory income B ENE SR B/
tax rate FRIEE 1 70,109 95,909
Lower tax rate for specific provinces 5 E A 19 s 5 BUR
or enacted by local authority FT M M EE R =R (3,203) (1,747)
Adjustments in respect of current tax FRBEHRENE TSR
of previous period (652) -
Income not subject to tax BERTA (68) (248)
Expense not deductible for tax TR 2 2,585 5,145
Tax losses utilised from previous periods )BT AR IEEE (946) (2,671)
Tax losses not recognised RERBTIAEE - 1,119
Tax charge at the Group's effective tax rate &A= B B X5t EHHIB S H 67,825 97,507
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

11.

12.

DIVIDENDS 1. I8
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARKETT
Proposed final — Nil FORAREAMR S — &

(2021: HK5 cents per ordinary share) - —F  FREBRS BN - 88,550
The board of directors does not recommend the payment of a EEeTEBKNEE S _—_F+=
final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 A=T—HLFENRBERE(ZT=—
(2021: a final dividend of HK5 cents per ordinary share). No F . RHREEFREBARSEN) - KE
interim dividend was declared in respect of the current year EXESKTPHERE(ZE_—F: &) -

(2021: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

For the purpose of computing basic and diluted earnings per
share, the number of ordinary shares has been adjusted
retrospectively for the effect of the subdivision of shares, new
shares issued under the reorganisation of the Group in
connection with the listing of the shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange (the “Reorganisation”) and the Capitalisation
Issue on a proportional basis as described in notes 25(a), 25(b)
and 25(d) as if these transactions had been completed on 1
January 2021.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent of RMB208,069,000 (2021: RMB280,609,000), and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 2,075,000,000
(2021: 1,783,767,000) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potential
dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.
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A EBIRES A AR
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il D)

e
mae4

BESREARAREBSRF - 0
25(a) ~ 25(b) K& 25(d) Ay alt - X 38 Ak #Y £

SEDRIREMOIFAE  BEARAF KM
R EmMASESHE(EAD T
RN B IT R E M BEITH R 2L E

IO  MINEERFGER_Z
——F—HA—H%EK-

BRERBNSBEEANET AR LEE
@A ARG EF A R 208,069,000
T(ZFT = —4F: AR %280,609,000
TC)  ARFRBFETHTREK 2 NETF
5 #£2,075,000,000%( — & — — 4 :
1,783,767,000 f%) 5+ & -

HE_T-_—_FR_ZFT-_—F+=H4
=+ HIEFE SREXRZFNESEE
B3 B EE AR - TIARRA
EERBE_E-_—_FER-_F-—F
+ - A=+—HBItEEARTEDZETE
S LmAR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

BAEE SRR M AL

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

13. ME K&

Right-of-
use assets Owned assets
RAEEE BREE
Furniture,
fixtures
and office Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Subtotal Total
e
EERER
EF BARE BH it @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARBTTR ARETR
31 December 2022 —8-"E+-f=t+-H
At 1 January 2022: WZE-_—%—-f-H
Cost A 21,731 43,853 3,680 47,533 69,264
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (8,035) (13,361) (2,894) (16,255) (24,290)
Net carrying amount REFE 13,696 30,492 786 31,278 44,974
At 1 January 2022, net of i Sl =
accumulated depreciation MR 25HTE 13,69 30,492 786 31,278 44,974
Additions hE 1,651 12,258 239 12,497 14,148
Disposal HeE - (714) - (714) (714)
Termination )k (6,309) - - - (6,309)
Depreciation provided during ENGHEME
the year (4,437) (12,865) (333) (13,198) (17,635)
At 31 December 2022, net of W-Z-—F+-A=+-H"
accumulated depreciation NG ZE 4,601 29,171 692 29,863 34,464
At 31 December 2022: W-ZE-—F+-A=t+-H:
Cost A 17,073 55,190 3,400 58,590 75,663
Accumulated depreciation 23thE (12472) (26,019) (2,708) (28,727) (41,199)
Net carrying amount REFE 4,601 29,171 692 29,863 34,464
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

13. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13. MELEBE @
Right-of-
use assets Owned assets
RREEE EREE
Furniture,
fixtures
and office Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Subtotal Total
A
BERER
BF PRk B NG @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETL  ARETT  ARETR  ARETRE  ARETR

31 December 2021 —E--#4+-F=+-H
At 1 January 2021: RZE=—4—H—H

Cost A 3,418 18,419 3,650 22,069 25,487

Accumulated depreciation ZiME (3418) (8,458) (2,37) (10,829) (14,247)

Net carrying amount FHFE - 9,961 1,279 11,240 11,240
At 1 January 2021, net of RZZ-—-%-A-B"

accumulated depreciation MR 25HTE - 9,961 1,279 11,240 11,240
Additions AE 21,847 27,431 30 27,467 49,314
Disposal HeE = (980) - (980) (980)
Termination &b (3,534) - - - (3,534)
Depreciation provided during ENGHENE

the year (4,617) (5,926) (523) (6,449) (11,066)

At 31 December 2021, net of R-Z-—-%+-A=+-A-

accumulated depreciation Nk 2:E 13,696 30,492 786 31,278 44,974
At 31 December 2021: RZBE-_—%+-f=1-H:
Cost A 21,731 43,853 3,680 47,533 69,264
Accumulated depreciation 2:rE (8,035) (13,361) (2,894) (16,255) (24,290)
Net carrying amount FHFE 13,696 30,492 786 31,278 44,974
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAEE SRR M AL

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

14. IE W

Right-of-

use assets

ERAEEE

RMB’'000

AREFTT

Carrying amount at 1 January 2021 RZZE-——H—HAKAEB 491

Additions 460

Depreciation for the year (267)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 and RZE——F+-HA=+—HK

1 January 2022 F—HA—HBEAEE 684

Depreciation for the year (343)

Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 F+-—A=+—RHkEE 341

The Group’s investment properties represented leasehold
interests in properties held for rental purposes and are situated
in Mainland China. Based on valuations performed by
management, the estimated fair values of the investment
properties approximated to RMB343,000 (2021: RMB820,000)

as at 31 December 2022.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 = —F+—-_H=+—H
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties is using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3.

Set out below is a summary of the valuation technique used and
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

14. IREYEE (@)
NAREERR

AREBREMENRAABRBEKRSTA
BERBAZEBTE(E=ER) -

REN B-EBRES _ERHILE
ERAREFEER  FZBRTEL
a8 A -

AN EHERANHEERTREES
ABEBERIIT -

Weighted average

Valuation technique Significant unobservable input As at 31 December
I HEE
fh{E 5l EXTUEEGAHE R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Retail Income approach Adopted unit rate (per sq. foot) RMB75 RMB104
=€ WK KRERMEE (BFHRR) AR®75T AR®1047T

A significant increase/decrease in the adopted unit rate would
result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
investment properties.
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15. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group has lease contracts for properties used in operations.
Leases of properties generally have lease terms of three years.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets
included in property and equipment and investment

properties and the movements during the year are

disclosed in notes 13 and 14 respectively, to the financial

statements.

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (of which the
current portion is included under other payables and

BAEE SRR M AL

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H
15. HE
AEBEERABA

AEEREAERNELHMEHRERN -
MERE—RBEMES=F -

() FHAEEE
REBFTAMERZBARIZEY
¥NFEAEEEREELNFAN
FE o Rl R BRI RERM 13
K14 -

(b) HEEE

HEAB(BRNEMEMNKEAR
BETERATHHER BRI

accruals) and the movements during the year are as S)HREERFERNESOT ¢
follows:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T R ARETTT
Carrying amount as at 1 January R—RA—REKHRE 13,979 -
Addition NE 1,651 21,847
Accretion of interest recognised FRERHF BE K
during the year 372 560
Payments B (4,738) (4,857)
Termination 1k (6,497) (3,571)
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ZA=+—HEEE 4,767 [BAS
Analysed into: DT
Current portion mENER 4,102 5,765
Non-current portion EmENE D 665 8,214
4,767 13,979
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

15. LEASES (continued) 15. THE &)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AKEBERREA(2)
(b) Lease liabilities (Continued) (b) HESEE)
2022 2021
—E-CF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT AR¥TT

Analysed into: DT ¢
Within one year —&FR 4,102 5,765
In the second year FEF 665 6,045
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-ERF(BEEERT) - 2,169
4,767 13,979
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note HEABENIHB ST HERTE
34 to the financial statements. WHFEHIEE34 o
() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (0 REZHREBEEEBHSEN
leases are as follows: T :
2022 2021
—E-CF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R AREFTT
Interest on lease liabilities (note 6) HEBENF L (HiEe6) 372 560
Depreciation charge of right-of-use ERAEEENERS (FE7)
assets (note 7) 4,437 4,617
Depreciation charge of investment BEYERERS (B1FE7)
properties (note 7) 343 267
Expense relating to short-term leases HICHHERBNRAY
(note 7) (F&E7) 11,185 8,176
Gain on termination of leases (note 7) 4 IFFE 25 (KMt5E7) (188) (37)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss R8s R E S5 16,149 13,583
(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 28(c) (d) HEBRSRLATERERTIERE
to the financial statements. B 7 28(c) °
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15.

16.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 R A Y Rt

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

LEASES (continued) 15. HE @)
The Group as a lessor AEEEREHBEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) consisting REBBELCLESTHHARILEY
of various commercial properties in Mainland China under 2 (MizE14) - BEETBE AR
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally HWE O FHEGRR —RENKHEPL ZMR
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for BIRS - WHERESEM N EEHHE
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing Be  "EFREXNEZNHBESKAE
market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group ANEREEA242000T(ZFE=—F: AR
during the year was RMB4,242,000 (2021: RMB3,926,000). #3,926,0007T) °
The undiscounted lease payments receivables by the Group in NEBENKRRAREEBEERP BN AR
future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its BUL S E N ARITIR EWAE S0
tenants are as follows: T
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE ARETET

Within one year — %R 2,536 5,422

In the second year —F 459 4,747

In the third to fifth years, inclusive FERF(BREEEMRT) - 686

Total FEE 2,995 10,855
GOODWILL 16. &E

2022 2021

—E-= —E—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT ARETE

Cost and net carrying amount

A X BR T FE 748 748
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR M AL

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

16. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing on goodwiill

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
completed the acquisition of Kunshan Honghui Property
Management Company Limited (“Kunshan Honghui”) for a
cash consideration of RMB3,500,000, which resulted in the
recognition of goodwill of RMB748,000.

The recoverable amount of this Kunshan Honghui CGU has
been determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by management. The discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections is 21.6% (2021: 21.6%) per annum.
The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the
five-year period is 2.5% (2021: 2.5%).

Cash flow projections during the budget period for this CGU
are based on the management’s estimate of cash inflows/
outflows including revenue, operating expenses and working
capital requirements. The assumptions and estimation are based
on the past performance of the CGU and management'’s
expectation of market development. The management of the
Group believes that any reasonably possible change in the key
assumptions of the value-in-use calculation would not cause the
carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU.

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the
CGU as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The following
describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing
of goodwill:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

Annual revenue growth rate — The predicted revenue growth
rate of the CGU for the five-year period is one of the
assumptions used in the value-in-use calculation.
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSET

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAEE SRR M AL

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

17. B &=

Customer
relationship
PR
RMB’000
ARETR
At 31 December 2022 R-BE-_—F+=-HA=+—H
At beginning of year: RER
Cost [B#N 1,264
Accumulated amortisation ST (358)
Net carrying amount AREDFE 906
Carrying amount at beginning of year REFH BREE 906
Amortisation provided during the year (note 7) FRET e (M EE7) (253)
Carrying amount at end of year RERNEREE 653
At end of year: RER
Cost RN 1,264
Accumulated amortisation ST (611)
Net carrying amount AREDFE 653
Customer
relationship
BEFBF
RMB’'000
ARETT
At 31 December 2021 R-B-_—-f+=-A=+—H
At beginning of year: RER
Cost PR 1,264
Accumulated amortisation ESE 5 (105)
Net carrying amount AREDFE 1,158
Carrying amount at beginning of year RERAREE 1,158
Amortisation provided during the year (note 7) FRETHREE S (M EE7) (253)
Carrying amount at end of year RERNEREE 906
At end of year: RER
Cost [B%N 1,264
Accumulated amortisation e gt (358)
Net carrying amount AREDFE 906
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P EE

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

18. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

18. R—HKEELEMNKRE

2022 2021
—E-= B —F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TRT ARKBTE

Share of net assets BiLEEFE 1,926 1,655
Particulars of the Group's joint venture are as follows: AEBSLELENFBUOT ¢
Particulars
Place of issued
of registration and paid-up Percentage of equity  Principal
Name and business capital  attributable to the Group activity
BETR REEEE
a8 SRR AR S R S B BREARFE BEADL TEXK
2022 2021
—g--f —ZE-—F
Fujian Junyi Property Management ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 50 50 Property
Company Limited management
("Fujian Junyi”)*
BRERRNEEEER A hE,/ B AR 3,000,0007C NEER
([TRREERR )
@ Registered as a limited liability company under PRC law BERBERTMABERAT ©
# The English name of the company represents the best effort made by Z A AN ARG HEAI E R E AT - 5%

management of the Company to directly translate its Chinese name
as no official English name is registered.

The above investment is indirectly held by the Company.
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18. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

The following table illustrates the financial information of Fujian

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 R A Y Rt

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H
18. R—XEELENKRE @)

TRHAAREZRENPBER (LT E

Junyi that is not material: =)
2022 2021
—E_-C —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Share of the joint venture's profit and FE(RE & EF N F &
total comprehensive income for the year ~ 2 EUW A 4% 271 180
Carrying amount of the Group's AEERE X ENRAE
investment in the joint venture 1,926 1,655
19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. B 5 WA
2022 2021
—E-—F —E 4
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T R ARBT T
Trade receivables from related companies & U BgEs% A FIHY E 5 fE U 5118
(note 31(a)) (Mt3E31(a)) 98,050 54,261
Trade receivables from independent JEUE N 25 = 5 B E 5 EUGR
third parties 88,750 18,588
186,800 72,849
Less: Impairment of trade receivables B B S ERGIRRE (5,016) (1,087)
181,784 71,762
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. B 5 & WFIE )

Trade receivables represented receivables arising from property
management services, commercial operational services and
other related services. For trade receivables from property
management services, the Group charges property management
fees on a quarterly or monthly basis and the payment is
generally due upon the issuance of demand notes. For trade
receivables from other services, the Group’s trading terms with
its customers are mainly on credit and the credit period is
generally within six months. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by management. Except for the balances
with the China SCE Group and joint ventures and associates of
the China SCE Group, the Group's trade receivables relate to a
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are interest-free.

The amounts due from the China SCE Group and joint ventures
and associates of the China SCE Group are repayable on credit
terms similar to those offered to the major customers of the
Group.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

BHRYGRIREEREMEEERS &
B 2 MR Mt AE R AR 7% Y 8 UK
e RBEMEERRBENE S E UK
HmE  ARBRFESAEEERR
MEERE BEEZLNFBHNES
HIRS 3K - BLOR B E A RIS A E 5 8 KR
HME  AREEREFHNXZGRER
REE FEHR-—KANEARN- K
5 1B 7 SR OB AR 12 1) L R U [B] Y JE MR
He EEETHREAHGER - FREF
HEBRTREENSSDEMB LD
AR RSN - NEE A E 5 B W GR E
REZTCEFER BRI EEKRE
EEFRER - ARELEAEEF R
RBERTFTETAERYREMEER
THEHE - B RUGKERRE -

EUFREERTREENSEDEM
BENRMRBAARRERTAKRETE
EFNBUEERREE

RI|BEHR - B 5 RUKGAN KRR DT
(ERNBEREMANBREEEE) WT

2022 2021

—EgE-= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETIT

Current to 90 days BNEAZ 90 & 145,221 66,154
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 22,039 3,509
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K 7,385 1,409
Over 365 days 365 KA £ 7,139 690
181,784 71,762
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

BAEE SRR M AL

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

Z 5 I IE )

B 5 RS ERENESNT

2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTE

At beginning of the year REH] 1,087 1,011
Impairment losses (note 7) EERE (HE7) 3,929 76
At end of the year RER 5,016 1,087

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., customer type and
service type). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.
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P EE

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure

on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

B 2 WK

NIH (%)

AR 805 5 O B B L R A
B 5N B ER AR -

Due from
Current to 91to 181to Over related
90 days 180 days 365 days 365days  companies Total
LS 9MZE 1812 W B
90X 180 X 365K 365KMLE PEE a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARBTT AR®TRT ARETR
As at 31 December 2022 —fF
+ A E+
Expected credit loss rate  TAEIEEEBR 0.918% 1.087% 1.582% 61.639% 1.716%
Gross carrying amount FHEEE 65,495 13,894 5,310 4,051 98,050 186,800
Expected credit losses BHEEEE 601 151 84 2,497 1,683 5,016
As at 31 December 2021 R=Z=—%
+=A=+-H
Expected creditlossrate  FBHEEEEER 0.972% 1.009% 1.278% 62.092% 0.971%
Gross carrying amount B 13,892 2,675 1,409 612 54,261 72,849
Expected credit losses BHEEBRE 135 27 18 380 527 1,087
In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the business and ARRAEZRE  AEBEEBREFR

customer risk portfolio of the Group remained stable and there

were no significant fluctuations in the historical credit loss

incurred. In addition, there is no significant change with regards

to economic indicators based on an assessment of forward-

looking information.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

20. T FIE

BAEE SRR M AL

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

ma R AR

RECEIVABLES IE
2022 2021
—E-—F —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREFTT
Prepayments TERTRIE 32,699 13,821
Deposits b 2,339 2,384
Other receivables H b fE W E 30,841 13,027
65,879 29,232
Non-current portion SEmENE D (8,379) (2,176)
Current portion BN 57,500 27,056

All other receivables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
repayable on demand.

The Group has assessed that the credit risk of these receivables
has not increased significantly since initial recognition and
measured the impairment based on 12-month expected credit
loss. The Group considers the historical loss rate and adjusts for
forward-looking macroeconomic data in calculating the
expected credit loss rate. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the Group estimated that the expected loss rate for other
receivables was minimal under the 12-month expected credit
loss method.

The information about the credit exposure is disclosed in note
34 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

21. fﬁ%&iﬁ@%%%&@ﬁﬁﬁﬂ

PLEDGED DEPOSITS e/
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARETT
Cash and bank balances B& MIRTTIER 6 264,790 2,899,610
Time deposits TEHFR 1,962,500 -
Less: Pledged deposits (note (a)) W BEERFER (M) (1,000,000) -
Cash and cash equivalents He KRS EEY 1,227,290 2,899,610

Note:

(a) As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group's time deposits of
RMB1,000,000,000 were pledged to a bank in respect of the bank
and commercial bills of a business partner for the bidding of
commercial land parcels for future development of the Group. The
bidding was unsuccessful and the pledged deposits were released by
the bank subsequent to the reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits of the Group amounting to
RMB2,220,441,000 (2021: RMB2,427,033,000) were
denominated in RMB. The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, and Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods
of between six months to three years and earn interest at the
respective time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The
carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximate
to their fair values.
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22. TRADE PAYABLES

23.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 R A Y Rt

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

22. EGENFIE

RBERR - BZRNRBENRE DN

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: (EEREEHE) BT -
2022 2021
—Eg-= =%
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREETIT
Current to 90 days BIEAZ= 90 & 64,605 68,861
91 to 365 days 91 £ 365K 5,689 2,957
Over 365 days 365 KA £ 4,764 4,982
75,058 76,800

Trade payables are unsecured and interest-free and are normally

settled based on 10 to 90 days’ term.

The fair values of trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts
due to their relatively short maturity terms.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

BEHRNFASEERAREE  B—K

LA10ZE 90 KEVHAMR /518 o

RBERR BEFRNFAEQILEEE

FREEMEE

ARER R -

23. Eftb B 5B M BT E H

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

=2 AR¥TR ARETIT

Contract liabilities EXON=RE (@) 197,808 192,437

Other payables H b e~ B 43,240 42,356

Deposits received BliES 70,645 77,385

Accruals FEETE R 152,978 128,189

Lease liabilities (note 15(b)) HEa &M 150)) 4,767 13,979

469,438 454,346

Non-current portion — lease liabilities JERBIEH — HEEE (665) (8,214)

Current portion mENEL 468,773 446,132

Represented by: K&k

Contract liabilities EHAE 197,808 192,437
Current portion of other HAb BT IE R EFT &

payables and accruals KR ENEL 7 270,965 253,695

468,773 446,132
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued)

Note:

(a) Contract liabilities include advances payments received from
customers for services yet to be provided. The net increases in
contract liabilities were mainly due to the increase in short term
advances received from customers in relation to the provision of
property managements services at the end of that year.

Included in the contract liabilities as at 31 December 2022 were

advance payments received from related companies of RMB 1,389,000
(2021: RMB4,549,000) (note 31(a)).

24. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

23. B EN AN EETER @)

BT -

(a)

BRREEERSRERESKIER T
B ANBRBINFREIDEERNER
HEREHDEERRET = SWREP
B AE EREASRIZ AN o

R-ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—H AHEE
BREREBARKINENRARE
1,389,0007( — FE = —&F: AR K
4,549,000 7T) (Ffz£31(@)) °

24, RIEFLIE

BIERENFEARNESHINT -

Right-of-use

BIREE

Fair value
adjustment
arising from
acquisition of

assets a subsidiary Total
kg —=x
M A=
EEW
EREEE AREFAE At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETFT ARETIT ARETTT
At 1 January 2021 R-_ZE-_—F—H—H - 290 290
Charged/(credited) to profit or FRBR A, (GEA) B3
loss during the year (note 10) (BsE10) 3,424 (64) 3,360
At 31 December 2021 and RIE_—%F
1 January 2022 +—A=+—8kK
—E__F—H—H 3,424 226 3,650
Credited to profit or FRETAEZR
loss during the year (note 10) (Mt 10) (2,274) (63) (2,337)
At 31 December 2022 P =
+—HA=+—H 1,150 163 1,313

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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75 R A Y Rt

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 24. IRIEFRIA ()
Deferred tax assets BEBEEE
Losses
available for
offsetting
Lease against future
liabilities Accruals taxable profits Total
A 85
RRERB
HEEE ErtER R EE B3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETE  ARBTT  ARETRT  ARETR

At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—4%—HA—H - 6,074 1,767 7,841
Deemed distribution to the then RIEMEREREARA
equity owners fEHE DR = = (363) (363)
Credited/(charged) to profit or FRFA/ (KR E)
loss during the year (note 10) B (fft3E10) 3,424 3,089 (1,404) 5,109
At 31 December 2021 and R-E-—F
1 January 2022 +ZA=+—8k
—E-__%—F—H 3,424 9,163 - 12,587
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss FERFA/ (IR E) B
during the year (note 10) (FizE10) (2,274) 6,126 12,125 15,977
At 31 December 2022 A S
+ZA=+—A 1,150 15,289 12,125 28,564
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and REINZERN  ETEEBEEERS
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of BEERGEMBRARFERE - ATAR
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred REBEHE CBERIBREESN

tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

2022 2021
—E-F B —F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TRT ARBTET

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the — ZE4RA MR R R FERH

consolidated statement of EER IR E S5
financial position 27,414 9,163
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the 7E4R & BAFS AR N = R FERH
consolidated statement of EERIA B EF5E
financial position 163 226
Annual Report 2022 SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited 181
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

At 31 December 2022, the Group had unutilised tax losses of
RMB49,194,000 (2021: RMB4,477,000) that can be carried
forward for five years from the year in which the losses arose
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the tax entity in
which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of certain of these losses of RMB694,000
(2021: RMB4,477,000) as they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
these tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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24. RIEFLIE ()

R_ZE-——F+-_A=+—8 ' x&E
B R B R B 18 B 18 A R ¥ 49,194,000 7T
—ZT =% : AR¥4,477,0007T) ' 7%
EREEETHEBEELENFEELAS
R UEEEREENHIBEERR
Y FE SR A Al o R A KR 694,000
TL(ZZE=—%F : AR¥4,477,0007T) 8
ETEERAECHEELE  BAZS
BETHBARFEEL  MZREMBA
AELEBRERFE—BREH  BTREA
AR B ERTAEF S Al AR HZ SR
TBE51E -

BREB(REARKMBEEMBHIE)
REHEPEAMKZNINEIRELER
SN R A E IR AR 10% TR
BMeZBREE_TETN\F-—A—BEE
BAERR_—_FFLFE+_A=+—H
BRELZNEN - WP BEAMLEIERE
ERRADAERFERKIHE - AIRA
RERMRE - AEENEAREXS
5% ° FHIt - AEREARZFETEAM
B ARRE T NF—H—
B A4 B B I P 0 IR O B B A TR
B o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

25.

At 31 December 2022, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the Group’s fund will be retained in
Mainland China for the expansion of the Group’s operation, so
it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB857,710,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB656,266,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

BAEE SRR M AL

31 December 2022 —ZE - —F+ - f=+—H
EAETIE ()

MRZBE_—F+-H=+—8 WEH®
N5 B 5 R B R D K ST O B JBB R B ZE
MIBINF AR E L BF B R TE TR
REMBELERIE - RRARIESERA - K
SEME 2 GREBETE A A EER
REBREL A WEANHERHER
ZENBRARTRAIEED KA BEF -
MNR-ZTE-_—_FE+-_A=+—H8 EBEA&
A HR B R 3 B B 1 ) B A T N R L L R
RECHEEENEREZRLENAA
R#857,710,000t(ZE=—%F : AR
# 656,266,000 7T) °

AR A A E R R R BT 5| B
FifSTiER -

SHARE CAPITAL 25. g7
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
Authorised (number of shares): EE (R EE) :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 FAXE{E0.01 i T L m Ak 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREETIT
Issued and fully paid: BETRHRE
2,075,000,000 ordinary shares of FIREEO0.01 B ITHY
HK$0.01 each 2,075,000,000 fi% & i@ A% 17,292 17,292
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR M AL

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 25. BN )
A summary of movements in the Company’s issued share capital FARRRIEBEITRAMEEBMINT
during the year is as follows:
Share
Number of Issued premium
share in issue capital account Total
2RITRHD 21T
E2¢E] BA  BRORER st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®TT ARETRT
At 1 January 2021 nW—Z2-_—%—H—H 1,000 7 175,627 175,634
Subdivision of shares (note (a)) %7 ¥ 48 (Hff &% (a)) 779,000 = - -
Issue of new shares (note (b)) ZE{THT XD (T (b)) 382,980 3 1,587 1,590
Issue of new shares pursuant 1R & AL 31 T3E1T
to the Capitalisation Issue Az (FI3E (d))
(note (d)) 1,498,837,020 12,491 (12,491) -
Issue of new shares pursuant 1R IEARA T T
to the Company's listing it (HisE(e)
(note (e)) 500,000,000 4,167 1,537,627 1,541,794
Issue of new shares pursuant R4 175 8 58 A
to the exercise of the over- BATER D (M3 (f)
allotment option (note (f)) 75,000,000 624 230,256 230,880
Share issue expenses BTN E - = (46,792) (46,792)
Share-based payment expenses LARR 7 /4 £ RO 2058 52 = = 1,565 1,565
At 31 December 2021 and N-ZEZ—F
1 January 2022 +-A=+—Bk
—T-__%#—H—H 2,075,000,000 17,292 1,887,379 1,904,671
Share-based payment expenses LAR 7 &£ 65 3058 5 = = 1,614 1,614
2021 final dividend T —ERERE - - (88,550) (88,550)
At 31 December 2022 RZZ__F
+=—A=+—H 2,075,000,000 17,292 1,800,443 1,817,735
Notes: MizE -

(a) On 13 January 2021, each of the issued and unissued shares of the
Company with a par value of US$1 was subdivided into 780 ordinary
shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each, after which, the authorised
share capital of the Company was HK$380,000 divided into
38,000,000 shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each.

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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R_ZE-_—F—A+=8 " ARAAIEET
RABITEREE1ETORGFTELES
FXTEI{E 0.01 7 JTAY 780 AR L 3@ A% - E Ut
A A AEE B AN £380,0007 gt 0 B
38,000,000 i SR E(E 0.01 BITHIBAS °
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31 December 2022 — - —#+—-_HA=+—H
25. &R ()

Notes: (Continued) izt : (88)

25. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

On 13 January 2021, the Company allotted and issued 382,980
ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each to Happy Scene to
acquire the entire equity interest of Xiamen Cippon Tai Wo from the
China SCE Group as part of the Reorganisation. Upon completion,
Xiamen Cippon Tai Wo became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company.

On 10 June 2021, the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased by HK$49,620,000 by the creation of 4,962,000,000
additional ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each, ranking pari passu in all
respects with the existing shares of the Company.

Pursuant to the resolutions of the Company’s shareholders passed on
10 June 2021, on the Listing Date, the Company issued and allotted a
total of 1,498,837,020 shares, credited as fully paid at par, to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 10 June 2021 in proportion to their then existing
respective shareholdings in the Company by way of capitalisation of
the sum of HK$14,988,370 standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company (the “Capitalisation Issue”). This
Capitalisation Issue was conditional on the share premium account
being credited as a result of the issue of new share to the public in
connection with the Company’s initial public offering as detailed in
note (e) below.

In connection with the listing of the shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange, 500,000,000 new ordinary shares with a par value of
HK$0.01 each were issued at an offer price of HK$3.70 per ordinary
share for a total cash consideration of HK$1,850,000,000, before
deducting underwriting fees, commissions and related expenses, of
which HK$5,000,000 and HK$1,845,000,000 were credited to issued
capital and share premium account of the Company, respectively.
Dealing in the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
commenced on the Listing Date.

On 24 July 2021, the over-allotment option has been fully exercised
by Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited and UBS AG Hong Kong Branch,
and the Company further allotted and issued 75,000,000 additional
shares at HK$3.70 per share for a total cash consideration of
HK$277,500,000, before deducting underwriting fees, commissions
and related expenses, of which HK$750,000 and HK$276,750,000
were credited to issued capital and share premium account of the
Company, respectively.

Annual Report 2022
ZFFR

m,%ffi A+=8 " fEAEEAN—

o AR E] AL S A3 & 3 17382,980
Hik@@om%nm CSBARAR (D - DA
Fh Bk £2 [ Uk B8 B Pt B SR AN A9 2 SRR AE o
RFERKIE - B RBRMK ARA
HE2EHBAR

E/Q\—?— E/\ﬁ‘?’a Z’S/D\T/XIEHXZK
5 %8 5N 5% 4,962,000,000 A% & A% 0.01 75
m‘ﬂ =A% - B A049,620,000 % 7T + B

NRIBEBRNOIERA A AZAE REHAL

BEARBBRRN-_ZT-_—&EA+ARE
BERER  NEMA - AARBEBE
AR RPN 5 B AR A5 BE 14,988,370 78
TETEANME  BR=E=—F/xA+AH
BHARBIRRAMAORRIZEE RS H
R R R)HYFF IR B 5 3 4T K B 3% 4 Gt
1,498,837,020@&#?@@ME§\Jffﬁ%ziﬁ&
B ([EREEFET]) - RIXRENLEITE
Hﬁf’ﬁiﬁif‘;ﬁﬁTwﬁz(e)ﬁﬁu%§$
AERAAREEMRARFITHROESE
BRIEFAMER -

Eﬁzﬁﬂiﬂxf’ﬁﬁ tRFTETmE « AAF]
% & K3708 T W % E B % 17
500,000,000 % & f& E {8 0.01 B T K 37 &
BI% - 438 € K (8% 1,850,000,000 % 7T
(RINBREEE Ao REE L) &
EPE’JS 000,000 7t & 1,845,000,000 7 7T

D RIEFARRA RIE BATIRA KA D B
% ARRIRMDE LTHERBRAES -

RZZTE=-—FtA=+"WMA  Merrill
Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited X2 UBS AG & /&
DITEBBITEBELRE - NARIRS
& 3.70 78 it — AP B % & 317 75,000,000
AREEIMNIR D - 483 & X {8 /& 277,500,000
B(RMGREESE  BekEB@EXZD
A1) + E1750,000% 7t & 276,750,000 7

B2 Bt ARR R B BT A KRR 7 H
EER
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BA RS SRR M AL

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

26. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein for the year are presented in the consolidated statement

of changes in equity.

(a)

(b)

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles
of association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC,
each of the relevant subsidiaries is required to appropriate
10% of its net profit after tax, as determined under the
Chinese Accounting Standards, to the statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of its
registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in
the relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of
association of the relevant subsidiaries, the statutory
surplus reserve may be used either to offset losses, or to
be converted to increase the share capital provided that
the balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of
registered capital. The reserve cannot be used for
purposes other than those for which it is created and is
not distributable as cash dividends.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents (i) issued
capital of a subsidiary less the cost of acquisition of the
subsidiary pursuant to the Reorganisation; and (ii) the
capital contributions from the China SCE Group prior to
the completion of the Reorganisation.

On 19 January 2021, Shanghai China SCE acquired the
entire equity interest in Beijing World City from Max Fresh
Investments Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
China SCE Group, at a cash consideration of
RMB50,000,000. Upon completion, Beijing World City
became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. The acquisition consideration was accounted
for as deemed distribution to the China SCE Group.

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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(a)

(b)

EERBRFEE

WRIE R B2 RDE R A o B SZ /O B
BARMWAKERZMA - ZHEBEN
BB ARRREFFNEN10%
RBUATE BERFE - WIREHE
BRFERET -  EEREBERRED
HiFMEARH)50%  ZAEEH B
B AARAMN B A RAMSERZ A
HETRHNKRR - EERBRFE
A AR IR SH B 1R S IR R - (e
BERBEISIREME AL
25% ° fEE TSR IERLRILE /A
SNVEME AR - T RERSRER
BRI

BOtRE

AEEH A HHRERIE ) B AR
EBTRABERBEAWENE
RAEMKA R ()R EETTHATR
REEHEE -

RZZE=Z—F—A+1H  Eb&F
BRPHRERN —RE2EWBAR]
BT E B R A UK R 4 Ut R
MEEE BEREAARK
50,000,000 7T ° ek & + bRt R
WA AAR RN —REEEEN B
AF o WEREE AR AGERT
BEBEELHMNDIR
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26. RESERVES (Continued)

(c) On 23 January 2021, certain commercial property
management and operational services operated by the
business units of certain wholly-owned and non-wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the China SCE Group not
comprising the Group (the “Commercial Business Units”),
which did not exist as a separate legal or statutory entity,
have completed a transfer of their commercial property
management and operation business to certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Upon completion, all of the
then existing assets and liabilities of the Commercial
Business Units were retained in the China SCE Group and
the net carrying amount attributable to the China SCE
Group of RMB10,486,000 at the date of completion was
accounted for as deemed distribution to the China SCE
Group.

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

On 2 March 2020, the Company issued and granted 900 new
ordinary shares as restricted shares to Affluent Way and 12
employees at cash considerations of approximately
RMB149,381,000 (HK$166,500,000) and RMB24,898,000
(HK$27,750,000), respectively, which would be vested on the
condition that the employees remain in service for 5 years from
the date of grant. Accordingly, the Group measured the fair
value of these shares and recorded the excess of the fair value
over the subscription price as equity-settled compensation costs
over the estimated service period.

The fair value of ordinary shares of the Company was estimated
as at the date of grant. The following table lists the inputs to

BAEE SRR M AL

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

26. FE )

(c) R—ZT——F—A-+=8" @B
BREBMETE2EREZEWBA
B (T EEAER) MEBEMLE
METRHEYESENEL RS
((HEEBEMN])  HB T EAE
BRAESRATER  BEERBE
PIEMEETE MCEEBEBREA
AEIETHEBAR - ki mE
EBBENERNMEEERAEY
REBNRPRER - REK A ERB
REBREENEmMFAEARE
10,486,000 7L E A BR &R 1ER # 54
EBEIEEADIK ©

27. AR D A ETE AT IR

R-ZZT-TE=A=H AXAREKRE
K12 % (& B 317 & H 900 AR 7 i Ak
EREZRH G  BeRED RN AEA
R # 149,381,000 7t (166,500,000 % 7T )
¥ A R #24,898,000 7T (27,750,000 7%
7)) - EEBGGARESNED AR
ARFREETR - At A&EEE
ZERMHOARBL G AR EBRBRE
BERIDY AHTREBANESEE
RO B AR -

ARFEBROAAEREL B HG
B TRIHEARGEEARBENT R

the price-to-earnings multiples method used to estimate the fair SEE A S -
value:
Significant
Valuation technique unobservable input Multiples
fh{E B i ERTAEHENABE ZE
Fair value of ordinary shares of the  Valuation multiples Price to earnings multiple of 23
Company at date of grant peers rate
AR EBRAEEBHENAAE HERBHK CE P

The fair value of the restricted shares granted in 2020 was
RMB40,762,000, of which the Group recognised share-based
payment expenses of RMB1,614,000 during the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB1,565,000).
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RZBE-_EFRENZRHBOHAA
BEA AREA40,762,0007T ° HEAREE
REZEZZE-_—_F+=—A=+—HIF
ERRUBRMDEEROMRAIARE
1,614000t( —F = —F: AR
1,565,000 7T) ©
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P EE

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

o A
N}

(a) TEHFBREXRSH

i//lb%%ﬁﬁ\

tHH

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities of RMB1,651,000 (2021:
RMB21,847,000) and RMB1,651,000 (2021:
RMB21,847,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for office properties.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group's certain amounts due from the China SCE
Group in aggregate of RMB60,204,000 were re-
assigned such that the balances were settled against
the amounts due by the Group to the China SCE
Group.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

) #H=2-_ZT-_-—+ - A

=t—HLEEE: ®HBEIY
EHERHME  A5EHN

FREEENREERENIE
HeEmMD A A AR
1,651,00070( = — — F ¢
AE#21,847,00070) R AR
#1,651,0007C( == —4F :
AER#21,847,0007T) °

(ih Hz=2-—_Z-_—F+=A
=+—HLEFE AHEAR
# 60,204,000 T ) = T AR &
EEKTS®REBRRBECES
o BEEEHRESZAA
SEEMNTRERIEE

/IEJ°

(b) MEFEHELENEEEE

activities
Due to
Lease related
liabilities parties
A
HESE BA 5 RIE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETT
At 1 January 2021 R-_E-_—F—HF—H = 156,864
Changes from financing cash flows BEREREEY (4,297) (56,651)
New leases HE 21,847 -
Termination Rk (3,571) =
Interest expense FEFRX 560 -
Interest paid classified as operating DAL EREREN
cash flows =ENEES) (560) =
Deemed distribution to the then %E{"Elﬂ B EREA AEHA
equity owners 7K = 50,806
Dividend paid BERRE = (43,542)
Re-assignment of intercompany balances %75 Bt A 7] 64 %8 - (60,204)
Exchange realignment PE 5 - (213)

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 28. &4 e mE XM )
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) EETHELENEBSEH
activities (Continued) (%)
Due to
Lease related
liabilities parties
R
HEaE BE 5 TRIE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFIT AREFIT
At 31 December 2021 and R=F=-_—F+=-A=+—HK
1 January 2022 —E-_—F#—H—H 13,979 47,060
Changes from financing cash flows BERSREFEE) (4,366) (47,060)
New leases HE 1,651 -
Termination Ak (6,497) -
Interest expense EN=a 372 -
Interest paid classified as operating DERKERESREN
cash flows EfFIE (372) -
At 31 December 2022 R-_EB-_—_F+-_A=+—H 4,767 -
(c) Total cash outflow for leases () HEBRSRHAEE
2022 2021
—E-= ==
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥T ARETIT
Within operating activities R ETEEA 11,557 8,736
Within financing activities KRB EBA 4,366 4,297
15,923 13,033
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

29. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 29. BEHEM
Details of the Group's pledged deposits are disclosed in note 21 AEE BB EFERNFBE R AR
to the financial statements. EHTE21E -
30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30. B ARHEIE
The Group had the following capital commitments as at the end RIS ERE - NEBHEAR AT &K
of the reporting period: =
2022 2021
—E-= —E -
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®BTRT ARETE

Contracted, but not provided for: BRI A B AR -
Acquisition of office equipment i E NS 16,975 22,312
31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31. Bl 25
(a) Outstanding balances with related (a) EBEEAEEA BRI RS AEER
companies
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T R ARETT
Due from related companies PEUR BE A RIFRIE
Trade related ES5EE
China SCE Group R L 3 82,869 41,708
Joint ventures of the China SCE Group HEEEERNAZDE 13,972 12,553
Associates of the China SCE Group HhER SR BB A ) 1,209 =
98,050 54,261
Impairment AR (1,683) (527)
96,367 53,734
Due from a related party FE UK BREE 5 TR IE
Non-trade related FE S HEE
China SCE Group B E 649,176 =
Impairment WA (4,731) =
644,445 —
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B 75 R 2k B

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 31.

(a) Outstanding balances with related
companies (Continued)

A 5 X 5 )

(a) EEEEER D RIAYR(SEERR(E)

2022 2021
—s-= T4
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARBTT
Due to related companies PE 1 BEHE A RIFRIE
Non-trade related EE 3 HHEE
China SCE Group e E - 47,060
Other payables H {th FE AT FK
China SCE Group R L = 371 =
Contract liabilities EBHEE
China SCE Group FEcEE 1,278 4,384
Joint ventures of the China SCE Group ~ HEEEEH S L2 - 36
Companies controlled by =R ERERKEKE
Mr. Wong Lun and his family (ERE R kRN
members (together with [FERKK ) EHA AR
Mr. Wong Lun, the “Wong Family”) 111 129
1,389 4,549

The non-trade amount due from a related party is
secured, bears fixed interest at 7% per annum and not
repayable within the next twelve months. The non-trade
amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-
free and are repayable on demand. The Group has
assessed that the credit risk of these receivables has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
measured the impairment under the general approach
based on 12-month expected credit losses.
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31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 31. B A R 5 #)

(b) The Group had the following transactions (b) FRCEHEHBBAETUTR
with related parties during the year: R
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT ARETET

Property management service income REFREBNYXEE IR

from the China SCE Group WA 27,705 29,669
Property management service income REFRBEEEBE N TN

from the associates and joint ventures & &R YIS IE R

of the China SCE Group WA 4,043 4,343
Property management service income REBRKRENYEEIE R

from the Wong Family A 1,909 3,469
Value-added service income from the IR | & BE = E I8 (E RIS UR A

China SCE Group 197,745 161,805
Value-added service income from the REFREBRBENTINEZE

associates and joint ventures of the AL ERE KA

China SCE Group 19,249 31,288
Value-added service income from the KA = KR EHIEE RS A

Wong Family 140 52
Commercial operational service income 2R B Fp B4 &= B #3258 2 IR 7%

from the China SCE Group WA 32,311 227,358

Commercial operational service income KRB BEEBEBE QR LA L
from the associates and joint ventures 12 #) g 358 & AR AU A

of the China SCE Group - 16,509
Rental and utility expenses paid to the A EEEE X MEIFHE K&

China SCE Group NAEXEHR 682 2,204
Rental payments paid to the M EEEE S ES S >

China SCE Group* 3,688 4,402
Rental and utility expenses paid to the ~ MERKR KX THHEE K&

Wong Family NAEEEBR - 589
Purchase of car parking spaces from the [A) 91 B & [F i B (S E 7 A

China SCE Group” 1,698 820

Short-term lease expenses for car parks, [f]7 5% £ E 37 ([ HZEI5 -

common areas and advertising space NHE[EE R ES

paid to the China SCE Group EEEEY T 10,529 6,768
Short-term lease expenses for car parks, [A/FFEEE BRI A ST H)

common areas and advertising space FEG  AREENMEEM

paid to the joint ventures of the China KV HIFRE T

SCE Group 63 -
Loan advanced to the China SCE Group  [A] B8 &= [ % (B9 & Z k8 649,176 =
192 SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

32.

(b) The Group had the following transactions

(9]

with related parties during the year:
(Continued)

* During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
Group leased certain properties from the China SCE Group
and the rental payments were made to reduce the
corresponding lease liabilities.

A During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
Group purchased car parking spaces from the China SCE
Group, certain of which were purchased at nil consideration.

These transactions were carried out in accordance with
the terms and conditions mutually agreed by the parties
involved.

All of the above related party transactions also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the directors of
the Company represent the key management personnel
of the Group. Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

All financial assets and liabilities of the Group as at the end of

the year are financial assets and financial liabilities stated at

amortised cost, respectively.
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31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

3. B R 5 )

(b)

(9]

FACHEBABLETUTX
2. (#)

* RBE-T-_—_FR-FT=_—F
TZA=+—HLFE  AEEM
FREEHESTYERESIH
RO EENEEAE -

" RBEE-_TS-_—FRFR_T_——4F
+ZA=1+—BLEE  AEERF
BREBEEFHEA - HPET(EEA
NERERE -

ZER B TR T KRB ER
fERTR B AR A 7T -

FRERARE EMATERNHEAER
BEERNTREEXHES S H
S ERFTBRRE T R B B L
MRAEVUAEMERZBERS

FEEEEEEASHM
AAREERR  ARAEFHA

SEXEEEAR -EEZMEE
— R BEEHN T RN FES

32. IkERE TSR T R

AEERERNABESHEERAEBD
B RRBHEKATIENERMEEN S R

afE

o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

33.

34.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
reasonably approximate to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, amount due from a related party, cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities
of these instruments.

The Group did not have any financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments mainly include cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and other
receivables, amount due from a related party and trade and
other payables, which arise directly from its operations. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments
are credit risk and liquidity risk. Generally, the Group introduces
conservative strategies on its risk management. To keep the
Group's exposure to these risks to a minimum, the Group has
not used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging
purposes. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. The directors review and
agree policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade
receivables, other receivables, amount due from a related party,
cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits
since they are substantially placed at state-owned banks and
other medium or large-sized listed banks. Management does
not expect that there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

The Group expects that the credit risk associated with trade
receivables and amount due from a related party is low, since
the China SCE Group has a strong capacity to meet contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term. Information about the
impairment provision recognised during the year is disclosed in
note 31(a) to the financial statements.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by analysis by
customer/counterparty. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of the
Group's trade receivables from third parties and other
receivables are widely dispersed. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis.
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4. BEEREIREBENRBE @

FERR

AEEHEAREE SRR - Hib
FENRIA - PR AR T BOR - R IR
SEEYVALDERERNEERR

HRBEE AR EEYARSERFR
EBERRBEBRITREMPIHAR
EWRIT - AAKEBER TS HEEA R
ReRBITEHNEREERR - BE
BEMBEIERZERZ2UF I TRED
MELEFAERERX -

7N 5% [ 78 5 62 2 5 R W R TR e W R
THRERBENEERREE AR+
SEAFRANENETOLHNEHNR
TRERT - ARAERANFEREREE
M BEN M B HRERME31E)

AEEERERTREERFNE=T
ETRZ SR EERREERAET
F/RGEFETON - AR A KB
KB F =778 5 WA R E UK
ENEPEMEZ M R AREL
BEAKPEERR I BURFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  34.

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.
The amounts presented are the gross carrying amounts for
financial assets.

As at 31 December 2022

PHERREEHERBER®

&R #E)
B 5 LB R TR R 4R K B R

TRINTERAEBEFEEERNEEER
EhGaEERR(EZNAHER AR
- RIFAETHRBBRASZHALE NG
BRATMEEMER)  RRZT=_=
T+ _A=t+—HESX
BEDRE - FIZFINESEAEREED
HBRE(E o

R=2-=#+-A=+-§

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 AEH
FEER BEFENRNEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
KRR ERR EZRR [l :p73 st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Trade receivables* B SR * - - - 186,800 186,800
Financial assets included in -~ 5t ATBRTHUE - &R

prepayments, deposits and  E U TR IE K

other receivables** SREE** 33,180 - - - 33,180
Amount due from R L B 77 R0E *

a related party** 649,176 - - - 649,176
Pledged deposits BIEHER — kB8

— Not yet past due 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents 4 RIELZ(EY —

— Not yet past due R 1,227,290 - - - 1,227,290

2,909,646 - - 186,800 3,096,446
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BAEE SRR M AL

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 34. BIBEMEIE B2 RS &)

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021

&R #E)

B B R R AR K R (48)

R-ZE-_—F+=-HA=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
121E A TEER
FEER REFESEBEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FER FER F=MER Bler* st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT

ARETT ARETT ARETT

Trade receivables* B 5P a - - - 72,849 72,849
Financial assets included in -~ 5t AFERTFE « RE R

prepayments, deposits and L {th I FRIE £

other receivables** SREE 15,411 - - - 15,411
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RELZEY

— Not yet past due — R 2,899,610 - - - 2,899,610

2,915,021 - - 72,849 2,987,870

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified @ HAEBERAGETEAERENE S E

approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix
is disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

*x The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables and amount due from a related party is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is
no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit
quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

* %

WA & @ ERBUBRENE DK E
R ERMIEE9

T ATENFUR - e R EMRKFIR R
FE LS B 75 PR MY & BB EE M AR B 3
BEEMNBTEREEDTIAERUREE
EEBRAEEN  MEEEERFEES[IE
Bl Rl SREENEEEREER
[fF5E] °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 34, BA &R\ B8 B 12 RIKE ()
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk nBESRR
The Group's objectives are to maintain a prudent financial AEBENBEZRRFFENTIEER -
policy, to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to EmRSESHERTBIBREKERE -
maintain a contingency plan for funding to ensure that the WHEE S EZTENERAEERS
Group maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity ERRTAREREESENK -
requirements.
The following table details the remaining contractual maturities TRFVAEENSHEBEN T ——
of the Group’s financial liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and ER_ETE-_—FF+_A=+—HHBT
2021, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows SARNEABEN - LR IES AR IE
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates, ene(BREERAREN-_ZE-__FK=
based on rates as at 31 December 2022 and 2021) and the T —F+ - A=+—HHNAHA =X
earliest date that the Group could be required to repay: HHF BT ) kA E B A BB %
TR & F BAEmMAED
As at 31 December 2022 R=B-=%+=-HA=+—H
Within In the
1 year or second 3to
on demand year 5 years Total
—FR
HIRER B-F =ZRfF st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR® T AR%T R ARETR
Trade payables 2 ZIEN IR 70,294 4,764 - 75,058
Other payables and H A T FRIE &
accruals EstE R 113,885 - - 113,885
Lease liabilities HEBE 4,224 669 - 4,893
188,403 5,433 - 193,836
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AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  34. 1R E IR B 12 MIBER ()

REBESEE#)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2k B

R=ZB=-—-%+=-A=t+-—H

Within In the
1 year or second 3to
on demand year 5 years Total
—FNR
FIREK FF =EhEF HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARKETT ARBTT ARETFT
Trade payables B ENFIE 71,818 4,982 = 76,800
Other payables and H At FEA 50IE K
accruals it ER 119,741 - - 119,741
Lease liabilities HERE 6,278 6,278 2,186 14,742
Due to related parties FEATRABE 5 I8 47,060 - - 47,060
244,897 11,260 2,186 258,343
Capital management EXREE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its

business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments

to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue

new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or

processes for managing capital during the years ended 31

December 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 34, BA SRR & IR B 12 R IR (@)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (Continued) BERESHE (&)
The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is total AREBFERREIL X (BRI EELER
current assets divided by the total current liabilities, and UnBaEesE) REEARBLE(AE
liabilities to assets ratio, which is total liabilities divided by total BERERIAEERAE) EIEER - RER
assets. The current ratios and liabilities to assets ratios as at the SHIR R B R EEABL XN
end of each reporting period are as follows: T
2022 2021
—Eg-= T —F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETFT
Total current assets mEEEMAE 2,466,574 2,998,428
Total current liabilities MEN B EAATER 596,156 607,794
Total assets BEMAE 3,184,944 3,058,734
Total liabilities BlEEE 596,984 616,234
Current ratio M E) b & 4.1 4.9
Liabilities to assets ratio BEARLE 18.7% 20.1%
35. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 35. MEHARSEA
The Company repurchased a total of 60,000,000 ordinary ARARERZ-ZZE-_=F—A+—H=E
shares at an aggregate purchase price of HK$114,786,000 on T=ARZFTEZ=F—HF+XBETN
the Stock Exchange during the period from 11 to 13 January H HA R PR B A2 FT LA 42 38 B (8 114,786,000
2023 and from 16 to 19 January 2023. These repurchased BTl 4 60,000,000 % EBAR © %
shares were cancelled on 6 February 2023. EHWERNERZZT=F_H B
i ©
36 COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 36. L&

Certain comparative amounts have been re-presented to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

200 SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
PEEEESRBERERA A

ETHRSROENZ - UAFEARF
E0EE:

Annual Report 2022
Sk S
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75 R A Y Rt

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 37. RA R AR K
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the B AN TR IRE B R H B 7S AR R 3R &Y
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: EROR ¢
2022 2021
—E-—F —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT ARBTE

NON-CURRENT ASSET FREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries R B RRMIRE 1,592 1,592
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TE A RRIE N EAth FE IR 333 655
Due from subsidiaries Y= NGIE /S 1,741,640 1,041,880
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTIE R4 165,029 796,134
Total current assets MEEERE 1,907,002 1,838,669
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEETFHE 1,907,002 1,838,669
Net assets BESRE 1,908,594 1,840,261
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEITIRAR 17,292 17,292
Reserves (note) feb i (P ) 1,891,302 1,822,969
Total equity T 4R 1,908,594 1,840,261
Wong Lun Niu Wei
Efa 412
Director Director
2 -
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175 R A T ot

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

37.

KRB FEAR DR ()

Note: BT -
A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: AAREFEOBZT :
Share
premium Exchange Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
BR 435 8 AR B R ZitEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBTFT ARBFT
At 1 January 2021 R-ZZE-_—F—H—H 175,627 (10,261) (9,421) 155,945
Issue of new shares BITHR D 1,587 - - 1,587
Issue of new shares pursuant to the B4 & 7N (b 3178447
Capitalisation Issue o) (12,491) = = (12,491)
Issue of new shares pursuant to the  RIEAAF]_EH2ETT
Company's listing Edn) 1,537,627 = = 1,537,627
Issue of new shares pursuant to the 1B 4& 1715 #R 58 fic Rk 1
exercise of over-allotment option BETHIRD 230,256 - - 230,256
Share issue expenses TR ER (46,792) = = (46,792)
Share-based payment expenses DARS A7 & FEERE Y A~ 3R B 2 1,565 - - 1,565
Total comprehensive loss for the year 4= A2 4 A BB 4258 = (36,784) (7,944) (44,728)
At 31 December 2021 and R-ZZT——
1 January 2022 +ZA=+—Hk
22— —_%#—H—H 1,887,379 (47,045) (17,365) 1,822,969
Share-based payment expenses AR 5 EL R B0 15 3R B 52 1,614 - - 1,614
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FREEBA(BE)RHE
for the year - 157,565 (2,296) 155,269
2021 final dividend —T-—FREAKRE (88,550) - - (88,550)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE——
+=—A=+—H 1,800,443 110,520 (19,661) 1,891,302

38.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 30 March 2023.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFEPHRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities, and non- TFREAANEE:REREAMREE 2 EERE
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as £ - 818 & IEHER#EZ - Rk E T3 2 &
extracted from the published audited financial statements and the BT EHRRMARA R HE AT - —F /XA
Company's prospectus dated 21 June 2021, is set out below: “+—HRBRER

it

RESULTS 4

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-HLEFE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—8-f T C"T-TF —T-HhF —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETT ARETE ARETR ARETR

REVENUE g 1,182,371 1,230,050 805,284 574,517 396,507
Cost of sales HERA (752,413)  (649,181)  (448,707)  (362,227) (259,512)
Gross profit ES Y 429,958 580,869 356,577 212,290 136,995
Other income and gains HA A Rz 46,357 24,004 6,817 5,391 2,383
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHRE (1,032) (2,332) (5,351) (12,222) (12,426)
Administrative expenses THRX (194,745)  (218,525) (135,295) (98,533) (76,174)
Finance cost B%ER (372) (560) (43) (112) (114)
Share of profit/(loss) of ElE—XRe8hE

a joint venture wH,/ (&) 271 180 (25) = -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB ARF 280,437 383,636 222,680 106,814 50,664
Income tax expense RIEFRAY (67,825) (97,507) (60,170) (29,516) (15,844)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREA 212,612 286,129 162,510 77,298 34,820
Profit attributable to: ToBBEMERT) :

Owners of the parent HARHEE A 208,069 280,609 155,729 70,049 27,407

Non-controlling interests R 4,543 5,520 6,781 7,249 7,413

212,612 286,129 162,510 77,298 34,820
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFMBRE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING

BE - BENMIEERER
INTERESTS
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-H

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
B R ZE-THF —T-NF ZT)\F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT AREFT ARETLT ARETT ARETR
TOTAL ASSETS HEE 3,184,944 3,058,734 1,117,658 1,098,753 1,336,712
TOTAL LIABILITIES HefE (596,984) (616,234) (579,974) (748,680)  (1,053,937)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS  JEiRpRiEss (14,510) (9,967) (15,975) (9,194) (1,945)
2,573,450 2,432,533 521,709 340,879 280,830

SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
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